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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of
MAHINDRA WORLD CITY DEVELOPERS LIMITED

Report on the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements
of Mahindra World City Developers Limited (“the Company”), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Statement of
Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement
of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information. (herein after referred to as “the Financial
Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements
give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of
the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 as amended (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2022, of its loss and total comprehensive loss, its cash flows and its
changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the ‘Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Standalone Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI”)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the Standalone Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the Standalone Financial Statements.

Information other than the Standalone Financial Statements and
Auditors’ Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the Directors’ Report and
the related annexures, but does not include the Standalone Financial
Statements and our Auditors’ Report thereon.

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the Standalone Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during
the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated
in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these
Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive
income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
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the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, management is
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the
Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
Standalone Financial Statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these Standalone Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company
has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the Standalone
Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
Standalone Financial Statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the Standalone Financial Statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone
Financial Statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it
probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable
user of the Standalone Financial Statements may be influenced. We
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work;
and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the
Standalone Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016
(“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in terms
of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act and on the basis
of such checks of the books and records of the Company as
we considered appropriate and according to the information and
explanations given to us, we give in Annexure B, a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(@) We have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law
have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from
our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss
including Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of
Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial
Statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from
the directors as on March 31, 2022 taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

() With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure A. Our
report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy
and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal
financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements.

(@) In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the Company has
not paid any remuneration to its directors during the year
and hence provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act,
2013 are not applicable.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the
Auditors’ Report in accordance with the requirements
of Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending
litigations on its financial position in its Standalone
Financial Statements. (Refer Note 28 to the Standalone
Financial Statements)

(i) The Company did not have any long- term contracts
which has any material foreseeable losses. The
Company did not have any derivative contracts.

(i) There were no amounts which were required to be
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

(iv) The management of the Company have represented
to us respectively that, to the best of their knowledge
and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Company or any of such subsidiaries (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(v) The management of the Company is represented to
us that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company or any
of such subsidiaries from any person(s) or entity(ies)
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Company or any of such subsidiaries shall,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(vij Based on the audit procedures, that has been
considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, performed by us nothing has come to
our notice that has caused us or the other auditors to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (a)
and (b) contain any material misstatement.

(vii) The Company has not declared any dividend during
the year.

For B. K. Khare & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration Number 105102W)

Aniruddha Joshi

Partner

Membership No. 040852
UDIN: 22040852AHRBLN1873

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 23, 2022
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even date]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference
to Standalone Financial Statements under Clause (i) of
sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to
Standalone Financial Statements of Mahindra World City Developers
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with
our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company
for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing
and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of its business including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s
internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”)
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and
the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of
the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system
with reference to Standalone Financial Statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with
reference to Standalone Financial Statements included obtaining
an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to
Standalone Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the

Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to
Standalone Financial Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to
Standalone Financial Statements

A company’s internal financial control with reference to Standalone
Financial Statements is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of Standalone Financial Statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal financial control with reference
to Standalone Financial Statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance
with authorisations of management and directors of the Company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition
of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
Standalone Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with
reference to Standalone Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls
with reference to Standalone Financial Statements, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control with reference to Standalone Financial Statements
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material respects,
an adequate internal financial controls system with reference
to Standalone Financial Statements and such internal financial
controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the criteria
for internal financial control with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For B. K. Khare & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 105102W

Aniruddha Joshi

Partner

Membership No. 040852
UDIN: 22040852AHRBLN1873

Place: Chennai
Date: April 23, 2022
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

In respect of its Property, Plant and Equipment:

(@ The Company has maintained proper records
showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of the property, plant and equipment.

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment were physically
verified during the year by the Management and
according to the information and explanations given
to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on
such verification.

(c) With respect to immoveable properties of land
that are freehold, according to the information and
explanations given to us and the records examined
by us and based on the examination of the original
title deeds / Land Delivery Receipts (LDR’s) issued by
Government provided to us, we report that, the title
deeds of such immovable properties are held in the
name of the Company as at the balance sheet date.

a) In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us, having regard to the
nature of inventory, the physical verification by way
of verification of title deeds are done at reasonable
intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed
on physical verification.

b) According to the information and explanations given
to us, the Company has been sanctioned working
capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in
aggregate, from HDFC Bank Limited on the basis
of security of the current assets of the Company
excluding Inventories during the year. The Cashflow
statements filed by the Company with HDFC Bank
Limited on a quarterly basis are in agreement with
the unaudited books of account as certified by the
management.

According to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has not made any guarantee or security
or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans,
secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties during the year.
Accordingly, the reporting under Clauses 3(iii) (a) to 3(iii)(f)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has complied
with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act
with respect to investments made. The Company has not
granted any loans or provided any guarantee or security
during the year to the parties covered under Sections 185
and 186 of the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has not accepted any deposits from
the public within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 or any

Vi.

Vii.

other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed
there under, where applicable. Accordingly, the reporting
under Clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by
the Central Government under Section 148(1) of the Act.
We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by
the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records
and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended, prescribed by the
Central Government under subsection (1) of Section 148
of the Act and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the
prescribed cost records have been made and maintained.
We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the
cost records with a view to determine whether they are
accurate or complete.

According to the information and explanations given to
us, in respect of statutory dues:

(@ The Company has generally been regular in
depositing undisputed statutory dues, including
Provident Fund, Income-tax, Goods and Services Tax,
Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to
it with the appropriate authorities.

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of Provident Fund, Income-tax, Goods and
Services Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues
in arrears as at March 31, 2022 for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

(c) The details of dues of Service Tax which has not
been deposited as on March 31, 2022 on account of
disputes are given below:

Name of
Statue

Period
to which
amount
relates

Amount
Unpaid (Rs.
in Lakhs)

Forum where
dispute is
pending

Nature of
Dues

Finance Act,
1994

Service Tax | CESTAT 2008-2017 455.23

The Income
Tax Act, 1961

Income Tax  |Hon’ble High 2016-17

Court of Madras

10,100

viii. According to the information and explanations given to us

and on the basis of our examination of books and records
of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in the
repayment of loans or borrowings to financial institutions
and banks. The Company has not taken any loans or
borrowings from Government and has not issued any
debentures.

a) According to the information and explanations
given to us and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, the Company has not defaulted
in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender during
the year.
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c)

According to the information and explanations given
to us, the Company has not been declared a willful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any
other lender till the date of our audit report.

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the term loans have been
applied for the purpose for which the loans were
obtained.

According to the information and explanations given
to us and based on the audit procedures performed
by us and on an overall examination of the Balance
Sheet of the Company, we report that the Company
has utilised funds raised on short-term basis
aggregating to Rs.250 crores for long-term purposes.

According to the information and explanations given
to us and on an overall examination of the Financial
Statements of the Company, we report that the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or
person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

According to the information and explanations given
to us and based on the audit procedures performed
by us, we report that the Company has not raised
any loans during the year on the pledge of securities
held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate
companies. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause
3(ix) (f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has not raised any moneys by way
of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the
reporting under Clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given
to us, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or convertible
debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible)
during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under
Clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

During the course of our examination of books and
records of the Company, carried out in accordance
with the generally accepted auditing practices in India,
and according to the information and explanations
given to us, we have neither come across any
instance of material fraud by the Company or on the
Company by its officers or employees, noticed or
reported during the year, nor have we been informed
of any such case by the management.

There has been no report filed by us under
sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Act in Form

Xii.

Xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

XVi.
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ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause
3(xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

c) As represented to us by the management, no whistle
blower complaints were received by the Company
during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company is not a Nidhi company and the Nidhi Rules,
2014 are not applicable to it. Accordingly, the reporting
under Clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has entered into
transactions with related parties in compliance with the
provisions of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details
of such related party transactions have been disclosed in
the Financial Statements as required by Indian Accounting
Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures, specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

a) In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us and based on our
examination, the Company has an internal audit
system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

b) We have considered the Internal Audit reports of the
Company issued till date for the period under audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
directors of its holding company, Associate, Joint venture
or persons connected with them during the year and hence
provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to
the Company. Accordingly, the reporting under (xv) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

a) According to the information and explanations given
to us, the Company is not required to be registered
under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause (xvi) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

b) In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us, the Company has not
conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing
Finance activities. Accordingly, the reporting under
Clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(c) and (d) In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India.
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XVii.

Xviii.

XiX.

Accordingly, the reporting under Clauses 3(xvi)(c)
and 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has incurred
cash losses of Rs. 1699 lakhs during the current financial
year and Rs. 678 lakhs in the immediately preceding
financial year

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors
during the vyear. Accordingly, the reporting under
Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given
to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing
and expected dates of realisation of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge
of the Board of Directors and management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which
causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report that the Company is
not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
Balance Sheet as and when they fall due within a period
of one year from the Balance Sheet date. We, however,
state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability

Place: Chennai
Date: April 23, 2022

of the company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and
we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
Balance Sheet date, will get discharged by the Company
as and when they fall due.

According to the information and explanations given to us,
in respect of other than ongoing projects, the Company
has no unspent amount that needs to be transferred to a
Fund specified in Schedule VIl to the Act in compliance
with second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 135 of
the Act.

. According to the information and explanations given to

us, in respect of ongoing projects, the Company has
no unspent amount which needs to be transferred to a
special account in compliance with sub-section (6) of
Section 135 of the Act.

For B. K. Khare & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 105102W

Aniruddha Joshi

Partner

Membership No. 040852
UDIN: 22040852AHRBLN1873



MAHINDRA WORLD CITY DEVELOPERS LIMITED
CIN No. U92490TN1997PLC037551

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH, 2022

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Particulars Note As at As at
No 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(@) Property, Plant and EQUIDMENT .........cooiiiiiiieie e e 3 2,642.12 2,907.41
(b) Capital Work in Progress................... 3 30.00 30.00
(c) Intangible Assets........ccccoviiiiienieennn. 3 - -
(d) Financial ASSEtS .......ccceevvveiviieeiiinennn
(i) Investments........cccceeviiiiiniiiinnns
(@) Investments in Associate 4 1,300.00 1,300.00
(b) Investments in Joint Venture ........c.ccccvveneenene. 4 10,200.00 10,200.00
(i) Other Financial Assets 5 5.02 5.02
(e) Deferred Tax Asset (Net)......cccceeueeee. 15 1,110.76 257.90
(f)  Other NON-Current ASSELS ......ccoiiiieiiiiie et e 6 196.66 122.85
15,484.56 14,823.18
Current assets
GV 101 o1 (o] 1= USRS 7 27,680.47 27,664.03
(b) Financial Assets ........ccccceviiiieninenne.
(i) Trade Receivables ...................... 8 403.04 439.52
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 9 1,360.95 198.39
(ii) Other Financial Assets................ 5 - -
(c) Other Current Assets ........cccceevereenen. 6 3,384.68 3,378.46
32,829.14 31,680.40
Total Assets 48,313.70 46,503.58
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(@) EQquity Share Capital........cceooiuiiiiieiiieie e 10 2,000.00 2,000.00
(b) Other EQUItY .....oovvveiiiiiiiicce 11 9,013.17 11,046.01
Total EQUILY ... e 11,013.17 13,046.01
Non-current liabilities
(@) Financial Liabilities .......cuueeiiiiieiiiie ittt
(i) BOrrowings.......ccocceeeviivieeniineennns 12A - 22,855.02
(i) Other Financial Liabilities ........... 13 1.64 1.54
(b) Other Liabilities.........cccccceereriiieninnee 14 1,279.47 1,338.23
(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net).............. 15 - -
(d) ProvisSions .......cccceevvuvveeiiiinesiiiee e 16 21.30 22.61
Total Non-current labilities..............ooveeeeiii e 1,302.41 24,217.40
Current liabilities
(@) Financial Liabilities .......cuueeiiiiie ittt
(i) BOrrowings.......ccocceveeniiveeeniineeenns 12B 33,705.25 7,838.30
(i) Trade Payables
total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises......... 17 65.45 14.26
total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
SMAIl ENEEIPIISES. ...t 17 827.80 795.19
(iiiy Other Financial Liabilities 13 793.38 135.58
(b) Other Current Liabilities ..................... 14 426.16 396.05
(C)  PrOVISIONS ...ttt 16 180.08 60.84
Total Current LiabililieS .............uuuiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieii et eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaeeesesssesseseessessneenes 35,998.12 9,240.17
Total LiabiliIes .........oooiiiiei e 37,300.53 33,457.57
Total Equity and Liabilities...............c.coooiiiiiiii e 48,313.70 46,503.58
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2
The accompanying notes 1 to 40 are an integral part of the financial statements.
In terms of our Report of even date For and on behalf of the board of directors of
for B.K. Khare & Co. Mahindra World City Developers Limited
Chartered Accountants
) i A K Nanda Arvind Subramanian
Aniruddha Joshi Chairman Director
Partner (DIN:00010029) (DIN: 02551935)
Place: Chennai Vimal Agarwal Bharathy K Antaryami Sahoo
Date: 23 April 2022 Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary



MAHINDRA WORLD CITY DEVELOPERS LIMITED
CIN No. U92490TN1997PLC037551

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2022

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

For the For the
year ended year ended
Particulars Note No. 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021
Income
I.  Revenue from operations 18 2,849.98 4,640.38
Il.  Other Income 19 12.42 55.99
. Total income (I + 1) ..o 2,862.40 4,696.37
Expenses
(@) Cost of Projects
Cost of Projects 20 - 626.89
Operation and Maintenance Expenses 21 1,670.15 1,636.19
(b) Employee Benefits Expense 22 379.81 341.02
(c) Depreciation/Amortisation Expense 3 332.94 338.04
(d) Finance Costs 23 2,711.98 2,007.65
(e) Other Expenses 24 652.09 582.31
IV. Total EXPENSES .......cooiiiiiiiiiiiie ittt 5,746.97 5,532.10
V. Loss before tax (1) = (IV) ..o (2,884.57) (835.73)
Tax expenses/(Credit)
Current tax 15 - -
Deferred tax 15 (852.54) (185.26)
Tax relating to earlier years- Current Tax 28 - 2,204.85
Tax relating to earlier years -Deferred Tax - (1,838.50)
VI. Total tax expense/(Credit) (852.54) 181.09
VIl. Loss for the year after tax (V- VI) (2,032.03) (1,016.82)
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) Remeasurement of the defined benefit plans (1.14) 7.60
(b) Income tax relating to ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (0.33) 2.21
VIIl. Other Comprehensive Income/(loss) for the year (0.81) 5.39
Total Comprehensive Loss for the year (VII + VIII) (2,032.84) (1,011.43)
Earnings per equity share (face value of Rs.10/- each) 27
Basic & Diluted earnings per share (Rs.) (10.16) (5.08)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2
The accompanying notes 1 to 40 are an integral part of the financial statements.
In terms of our Report of even date For and on behalf of the board of directors of
for B.K. Khare & Co. Mahindra World City Developers Limited

Chartered Accountants

. . A K Nanda
Aniruddha Joshi Chairman
Partner (DIN:00010029)

Place: Chennai

- Vimal Agarwal
Date: 23 April 2022

Chief Executive Officer

Arvind Subramanian
Director
(DIN: 02551935)

Bharathy K
Chief Financial Officer

Antaryami Sahoo
Company Secretary



MAHINDRA WORLD CITY DEVELOPERS LIMITED
CIN No. U92490TN1997PLC037551

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2022

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Particulars For the For the
period ended year ended
31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021

Cash flow from operating activities

Loss before tax for the Year.........uoiiiiiiiiee s (2,884.57) (835.73)
Non-cash adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows............cccceeeieinen.
Depreciation and amortiSation EXPENSE.........coiiiiiiiiriiie e 332.94 338.04
Liabilities no longer required written DacK ...........cccoveiiiiiiiiiic e - (41.25)
(R g F=T Lot @011 £ 2,711.98 2,007.65
INEErEST INCOMIE..... e e e nnee s - (0.58)
Provision towards expected credit [0SSES..........uiii i 94.77 48.68
Operating Profit before working capital changes ..................cccooiiiii 255.12 1,516.81
Working Capital changes:
(Increase)/Decrease N INVENTOMES ..........cciiiiiiiii e (16.40) 624.63
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables............cccccoviiiiiiiiiiiiiicic (58.29) 110.71
Decrease in FINANCial ASSEIS.........ccoiiiiiiiiiiic e s - 0.20
Increase in Other ASSEtS..........cccviiiiiiiiiii (80.04) (28.61)
Increase in Trade PayabIes. ... 83.78 20.64
Increase in Financial Liabilities ...........cuvoiiiiiiii e 538.99 10.40
Decrease in Other LiabilitieS ..........coviiiiiiiiiiieii s (28.65) (172.37)
(Decrease)/INCrease iN PrOVISIONS ........c.uiiiiiiiiiiie ettt 10.56 (5.00)
Cash generated from OPEratioNS.........c.iiviiiiiieii e 705.07 2,077.41
Direct taxes paid (net Of refUNdS) .........cooiiiiiiiiiie s 106.23 (56.26)
Net cash generated from operating activities (A).........c.cccvviiiiiniiiin i 811.30 2,021.15

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (PPE)..........cccoiiiiiiiiiiieiie e (67.65) (20.70)
Increase in Bank Deposits not considered Cash and Cash Equivalents............c.cccocee.ee. - (0.49)
INTErESE FECEIVEA ...t - 0.58
Net cash used in investing activities (B) .......cccccmmrimmmrmnninsmnrinsrs s sssssnnens (67.65) (20.61)




MAHINDRA WORLD CITY DEVELOPERS LIMITED
CIN No. U92490TN1997PLC037551

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2022 (Cont'd)

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Particulars For the For the
period ended year ended
31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021

Cash flows from Financing activities

Proceeds of short term borrowings from related party .........cccoccvvieiiinie e 30,940.00 2,200.00
Repayment of short term borrowings from related party..........ccccooeriiiiiiie (4,200.00) -
Proceeds from 10ng term DOIrTOWINGS ......eoiiiiiiiiiiie e 4,900.00 -
Repayment of ong term DOrTOWINGS. ........ooiiiiiiieiieeee e (27,775.94) (1,385.08)
[0 (=TS A = o PSPPSR (2,572.10) (2,609.72)
Net cash generated from/(used in) Financing activities (C) ............cccccooeniiniiinicninnn, 1,291.96 (1,794.80)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C).......ccceeviiiiiiiiiniic e 2,035.61 205.74
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year ...........c.ccoooriiiiicncie (3,439.91) (3,645.65)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer Note 9)...............ccooviiiiinns (1,404.30) (3,439.91)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2
The accompanying notes 1 to 40 are an integral part of the financial statements.
Change in Liabilities arising from financing activities
As at Other As at
Particulars 01+t April, 2021 Cash Flow Adjustments 31t March, 2022
Non Current Borrowings (Refer Note 12A) 22,855.02 (22,875.94) 20.92 -
Currrent Borrowings (Refer Note 12B) 4,200.00 30,940.00 - 35,140.00
Total 27,055.02 8,064.06 20.92 35,140.00

The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “indirect method” as set out in ‘Indian Accounting Standard
(Ind AS) 7 - Statement of Cash Flows’.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2

The accompanying notes 1 to 40 are an integral part of the financial statements.

In terms of our Report of even date For and on behalf of the board of directors of
for B.K. Khare & Co. Mahindra World City Developers Limited
Chartered Accountants
. . A K Nanda Arvind Subramanian
Aniruddha Joshi Chairman Director
Partner (DIN:00010029) (DIN: 02551935)
Place: Cr;enngi Vimal Agarwal Bharathy K Antaryami Sahoo
Date: 23 April 2022 Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

10



MAHINDRA WORLD CITY DEVELOPERS LIMITED
CIN No. U92490TN1997PLC037551

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2022

A. Equity Share Capital

Particulars

Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid

As at 1 April, 2020 ......c.ooeieiiieiiee e

Changes in share capital ..........ccccooveeinrennen.

As At 31 March, 2021............cccceeeeeiiiinns
Changes in share capital ...........c.ccceevevennrne

As At 31 March, 2022...............cceeeeevvvvnnnnns

B. Other Equity

Particulars

As at 1 April, 2020
Loss for the year

Other Comprehensive Loss* (Net of tax)
As at 31 March, 2021

Loss for the year

Other Comprehensive Income* (Net of tax)

As At 31 March, 2022

No. of Shares Amount in
Lakhs

20,000,000 2,000.00
20,000,000 2,000.00
20,000,000 2,000.00

Other Equity

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

General Capital Retained Total
Reserve Redemption earnings
(Note 11) Reserve (Note 11)

(Note 11)

345.00 6,500.00 5,212.44 12,057.44

- - (1,016.82) (1,016.82)

- - 5.39 5.39

345.00 6,500.00 4,201.01 11,046.01

- - (2,032.03) (2,032.03)

- - (0.81) (0.81)

345.00 6,500.00 2,168.17 9,013.17

* Remeasurement gains/(losses) net of taxes on defined benefit plans during the year is recognised as part of retained earnings

The accompanying notes 1 to 40 are an integral part of the financial statements.

In terms of our Report of even date
for B.K. Khare & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Aniruddha Joshi
Partner

Place: Chennai
Date: 23 April 2022

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Mahindra World City Developers Limited

A K Nanda Arvind Subramanian
Chairman Director
(DIN:00010029) (DIN: 02551935)
Vimal Agarwal Bharathy K

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

Antaryami Sahoo
Company Secretary
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MAHINDRA WORLD CITY DEVELOPERS LIMITED
CIN No. U92490TN1997PLC037551

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

12

General Information

Mahindra World City Developers Limited (“the Company”) was incorporated
on February 19, 1997. The Company is in the business of land development
for industrial, commercial and residential use. The Company acquires
land and incurs expenditure on its development and related infrastructure
facilities for lease / sale. The Company also maintains the Industrial Park
for which it collects operation and maintenance charges from the lessees.
The Company has developed and operates an integrated business city
“Mahindra World City” at Chengalpattu taluk near Chennai.

Promoted in a Public Private Partnership by the Mahindra Group and
Tamilnadu Industrial Development Corporation Limited (A Government
of Tamil Nadu Undertaking), Mahindra World City surpasses the
conventional definition of a business space - it is a business eco-system,
carefully linked and integrated to function with efficiency. Mahindra
World City, Chennai is India’s first integrated City and Corporate India’s
first operational SEZ.

Etching its name on India’s business map, Mahindra World City Chennai,
has attracted corporate giants such as BMW, B.Braun, Capgemini, Holiday
Inn Express, Infosys, BASF, Lincoln Electric, Parker Hannifin, Renault-Nissan,
Tesa SE, Federal Mogul, Fujitec, NTN Corporation, Timken, TVS Group of
Companies and Wipro among others.

The Registered office of the company is located at Ground Floor, Mahindra
Towers, 17/18, Patulous Road, Chennai, Tamil Nadu -600 002.

Significant Accounting Policies
2.1 Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared
in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as
per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as
amended and notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

2.2 Basis of Measurement
2.2.1 Basis of preparation and presentation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period,
as explained in the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

2.2.2 Exemption from preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The Company has investments in an Associate and a
Joint venture. The Holding company, Mahindra Lifespaces
Developers Limited, having its registered office at 5th floor,
Mahindra Towers, Worli, Mumbai 400 018 are presenting
the consolidated financial statements. The Company has
therefore availed the exemption under paragraph 4(a) of Ind
AS 110 having satisfied the conditions for exemption from
preparing consolidated financial statements as per Companies
(Accounts) Amendments Rules, 2016 and thereby does not
present consolidated financial statements.

Consequently, the accounting policies mentioned herein
relate to the standalone financial statements of the Company.

2.2.3 Measurement of fair values

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of
Ind AS 102, leasing transactions that are within the scope of

2.3

Ind AS 116, and measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

* Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

* Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

* Level 3 Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

2.2.4 Current versus non-current classification

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of
assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents.

Based on the nature of activity carried out by the company
and the period between the procurement and realisation in
cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained
its operating cycle as 1 year for the purpose of Current —
Non Current classification of assets & liabilities.

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance
sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

— Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or
consumed in normal operating cycle

— Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the
reporting period, or

— Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being
exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

— It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
— It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

— It is due to be settled within twelve months after the
reporting period, or

— There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current
assets and liabilities.

Borrowings are classified as current if they are due to be
settled within 12 months after the reporting period.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable.

2.3.1 Land Lease Premium

Land lease premium is recognized as income upon creation of

leasehold rights in favour of the lessee or upon an agreement

to create leasehold rights with handing over of possession.
2.3.2 Sale of land

Revenue from Sale of land and other rights is generally a single
performance obligation and the Company has determined that



MAHINDRA WORLD CITY DEVELOPERS LIMITED
CIN No. U92490TN1997PLC037551

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

2.4

2.5

this is satisfied at the point in time when control transfers as per
the terms of the contract entered into with the buyers, which
generally are with the firmity of the sale contracts / agreements.

2.3.3 Project Management fee

Project Management Fees receivable on fixed period
contracts is accounted over the tenure of the contract /
agreement. Where the fee is linked to the input costs, revenue
is recognised as a proportion of the work completed based
on progress claims submitted. Where the management fee is
linked to the revenue generation from the project, revenue is
recognised on the percentage of completion basis. .

2.3.4 Income from Operation and Maintenance (O&M)

Income from operation and maintenance charges and water
charges are recognized on an accrual basis as per terms of
the agreement with the lessees.

2.3.5 Dividend and interest income

Dividend income from investments from Joint ventures and
Associates is recognised when the unit holder’s right to
receive payment has been established (provided that it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company
and the amount of income can be measured reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company
and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to
the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

2.4.1 The Company as a Lessor

Rental income from operating leases is generally recognised
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with
expected general inflation to compensate for the Company’s
expected inflationary cost increases, such increases are
recognised in the year in which such benefits accrue. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

2.4.2 The Company as a Lessee

Rental expense from operating leases is generally recognised
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line
with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s
expected inflationary cost increases, such increases are
recognised in the year in which such benefits accrue.

Lease arrangements where the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an asset substantially vest with the lessor
are recognised as operating leases. The assets given by the
Company on operating leases are capitalised in the books
as fixed assets. Lease rentals under operating leases are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

2.5.1 Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported
in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and

2.6

2.7

items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company’s
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the
tax laws, which gives future economic benefits in the form of
adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as an
asset if there is convincing evidence that the Company will
pay normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognized as
an asset in the Balance Sheet when it is probable that future
economic benefit associated with it will flow to the Company.

2.5.2 Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

2.5.3 Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in statement of profit
and loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in statement of profit and
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in
the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Freehold land is not depreciated.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the

13
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2.8

2.9

2.10

Company’s accounting policy. Such properties are classified to
the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these
assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences
when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Furniture and Fixtures and Office equipments are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other
than freehold land and properties under construction) less their
residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in statement of profit
and loss.

Depreciation on tangible fixed assets has been provided on pro-rata
basis, on the straight-line method as per the useful life prescribed in
Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013

Impairment of tangible and intangible asset other than Goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount, which is the higher of the value in use or fair value less
cost to sell, of the asset or cash generating unit, as the case may
be, is estimated and the impairment loss (if any) is recognised and
the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. When it
is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are
also allocated to individual cash generating units, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets
not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least annually,
and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in Statement of profit
and loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value after providing for obsolescence and other losses, where
considered necessary. Work in progress includes cost of land and
all expenditure incurred in connection with, or attributable to the
project, and, being a long-term project, includes interest.

Cash and cash equivalents (for purposes of Cash Flow
Statement)

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks.
Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original maturity
of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit /
(loss) before extraordinary items and tax is adjusted for the effects

2.12

2.13

2.14

2.15

of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals
of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from
operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are
segregated based on the available information.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

2.12.1  Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that the Company will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount
recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is
the present value of those cash flows (when the effect
of the time value of money is material). When some or
all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision
are expected to be recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received, and the amount
of the receivable can be measured reliably. Provisions,
contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed
at each Balance Sheet date.

2.12.2 Onerous contracts

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are
recognised and measured as provisions. An onerous
contract is considered to exist where the Company has
a contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting
the obligations under the contract exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received from the contract.

2.12.3 Contingent liabilities

Contingent liability is disclosed in case of:

a. a present obligation arising from past events, when
it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation; and

b.  a present obligation arising from past events, when
no reliable estimate is possible.

2.12.4 Contingent assets

Contingent assets are disclosed where an inflow of
economic benefits is probable.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss.

Foreign currency transactions and translations

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at exchange rates
prevailing on the date of transaction. Monetary assets / liabilities
are translated at exchange rates prevailing on the date of settlement
or at the year-end as applicable, and gain / loss arising out of such
translation is adjusted to the statement of profit and loss ..

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
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or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their
entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the
classification of the financial assets

2.15.1

2.15.2

2.15.3

Classification of financial assets

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost (except for debt
instruments that are designated as at fair value through
profit or loss on initial recognition):

. the asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms of the instrument give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (except for debt instruments that
are designated as at fair value through profit or loss on
initial recognition):

. the asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved both by collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets; and

. the contractual terms of the instrument give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Interest income is recognised in statement of profit
and loss for Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI) debt instruments. For
the purposes of recognising foreign exchange gains and
losses, FVTOCI debt instruments are treated as financial
assets measured at amortised cost. Thus, the exchange
differences on the amortised cost are recognised in
statement of profit and loss and other changes in the
fair value of FVTOCI financial assets are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated under the
heading of ‘Reserve for debt instruments through other
comprehensive income’. When the investment is disposed
of, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in
this reserve is reclassified to statement of profit and loss.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
fair value.

The Management assessed that fair value of cash and
short-term deposits, trade receivables, other current
assets, trade payables, book overdrafts and other current
liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due
to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The fair-
value of the financial-instruments factor the uncertainties
arising out of COVID-19, where applicable.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where

2.15.4

2.15.5

appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets classified
as at financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL). Interest income is recognised in statement of
profit and loss and is included in the “Other income” line
item.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL)

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost
criteria or FVTOCI criteria (see above) are measured
at FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet the
amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria but are
designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL.

A financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria
or debt instruments that meet the FVTOCI criteria may
be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if
such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising
the gains and losses on them on different bases. The
Company has not designated any debt instrument as at
FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or
losses arising on remeasurement recognised in statement
of profit and loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
statement of profit and loss incorporates any dividend or
interest earned on the financial asset and is included in
the ‘Other income’ line item. Dividend on financial assets
at FVTPL is recognised when the Company’s right to
receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of
part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend
can be measured reliably.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only
when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable
right Offsetting Financial assets and financial liabilities
are offset and the net amount presented in the balance
sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has
a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it
intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. to set
off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on
a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for
recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured
at amortised cost, debt instruments at FVTOCI, lease
receivables, trade receivables, and other contractual
rights to receive cash or other financial asset, and financial
guarantees not designated as at FVTPL.

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit
losses with the respective risks of default occurring as
the weights. Credit loss is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Company expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls),
discounted at the original effective interest rate (or credit-
adjusted effective interest rate for purchased or originated
credit-impaired financial assets). The Company estimates
cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the
financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension,

15



MAHINDRA WORLD CITY DEVELOPERS LIMITED
CIN No. U92490TN1997PLC037551

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

16

2.15.6

call and similar options) through the expected life of that
financial instrument.

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime expected
credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the
credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Company
measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument
at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses.
12-month expected credit losses are portion of the life-
time expected credit losses and represent the lifetime
cash shortfalls that will result if default occurs within the
12 months after the reporting date and thus, are not cash
shortfalls that are predicted over the next 12 months.

If the Company measured loss allowance for a financial
instrument at lifetime expected credit loss model in the
previous period, but determines at the end of a reporting
period that the credit risk has not increased significantly
since initial recognition due to improvement in credit
quality as compared to the previous period, the Company
again measures the loss allowance based on 12-month
expected credit losses.

When making the assessment of whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
the Company uses the change in the risk of a default
occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument
instead of the change in the amount of expected credit
losses. To make that assessment, the Company compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information, that is available without undue cost or effort,
that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since
initial recognition.

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive
cash or another financial asset that result from transactions
that are within the scope of Ind AS 115, the Company
always measures the loss allowance at an amount equal
to lifetime expected credit losses.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected
credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the Company
has used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind
AS 109. This expected credit loss allowance is computed
based on a provision matrix which takes into account
historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-
looking information.

The impairment requirements for the recognition and
measurement of a loss allowance are equally applied to
debt instruments at FVTOCI except that the loss allowance
is recognised in other comprehensive income and is not
reduced from the carrying amount in the balance sheet.

In addition, the Company has also considered credit
reports and other credit information for its customers
to estimate the probability of default in future and has
taken into account estimates of possible effect from the
pandemic relating to COVID -19. The Company believes
that the carrying amount of allowance for expected credit
loss with respect to trade receivables, unbilled revenue
and other financial assets is adequate.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and

2.16

2.15.7

continues to control the transferred asset, the Company
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in statement of profit and loss if such gain or
loss would have otherwise been recognised in statement
of profit and loss on disposal of that financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its
entirety (e.g. when the Company retains an option to
repurchase part of a transferred asset), the Company
allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial
asset between the part it continues to recognise under
continuing involvement, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between
the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer
recognised and the sum of the consideration received for
the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain
or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in statement of profit
and loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been
recognised in statement of profit and loss on disposal of
that financial asset. A cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated
between the part that continues to be recognised and
the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the
relative fair values of those parts.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

The fair value of financial assets denominated in a foreign
currency is determined in that foreign currency and
translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting
period.

. For foreign currency, denominated financial assets
measured at amortised cost and FVTPL, the
exchange differences are recognised in statement
of profit and loss except for those which are
designated as hedging instruments in a hedging
relationship.

. Changes in the carrying amount of investments in
equity instruments at FVTOCI relating to changes
in foreign currency rates are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

For the purposes of recognising foreign exchange
gains and losses, FVTOCI debt instruments are treated
as financial assets measured at amortised cost. Thus,
the exchange differences on the amortised cost are
recognised in statement of profit and loss and other
changes in the fair value of FVTOCI financial assets are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

2.16.1

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
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all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or
loss is recognised in statement of profit and loss on the
purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s
own equity instruments.

2.16.1.1  Financial liabilities

Al financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method or at FVTPL.

However, financial liabilities that arise when a
transfer of a financial asset does not qualify
for derecognition or when the continuing
involvement  approach applies, financial
guarantee contracts issued by the Company,
and commitments issued by the Company to
provide a loan at below-market interest rate
are measured in accordance with the specific
accounting policies set out below.

2.16.1.2  Financial liabilities subsequently measured

at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-
trading and are not designated as at FVTPL
are measured at amortised cost at the end
of subsequent accounting periods. The
carrying amounts of financial liabilities that
are subsequently measured at amortised cost
are determined based on the effective interest
method. Interest expense that is not capitalised
as part of costs of an asset is included in the
‘Finance costs’ line item.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial liability, or
(where appropriate) a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

2.16.1.3 Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Company’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. An exchange between with a lender
of debt instruments with substantially different
terms is accounted for as an extinguishment
of the original financial liability and the
recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly,
a substantial modification of the terms of
an existing financial liability (whether or not
attributable to the financial difficulty of the
debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment
of the original financial liability and the
recognition of a new financial liability. The
difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised
in statement of profit and loss.

Employee benefits

Employee benefits include provident fund, superannuation fund,
employee state insurance scheme, gratuity fund, compensated
absences, long service awards and post-employment medical benefits.

2.18

2.19

2.20

2.21

The Company’s contribution to provident fund are considered as
defined contribution plans and are charged as an expense as they
fall due based on the amount of contribution required to be made
and when services are rendered by the employees.

Defined benefit plans

For defined benefit plans in the form of gratuity fund, the cost of
providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit
method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each Balance
Sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they occur.
Past service cost is recognized immediately to the extent that the
benefits are already vested and otherwise is amortized on a straight-
line basis over the average period until the benefits become vested.
The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the Balance Sheet
represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as
adjusted for unrecognized past service cost.

Short-term employee benefits

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected
to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees are
recognized during the year when the employees render the service.
These benefits include performance incentive and compensated
absences which are expected to occur within twelve months after the
end of the period in which the employee renders the related service.
The cost of such compensated absences is accounted as under:

a) in case of accumulated compensated absences, when
employees render the services that increase their entitlement
of future compensated absences; and

b) in case of non-accumulating compensated absences, when
the absences occur.

Long-term employee benefits

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within
twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee
renders the related service are recognized as a liability at the
present value of the defined benefit obligation as at the Balance
Sheet date.

Earnings per Share

Basic / Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the
profit / (loss) after tax (including the post-tax effect of extraordinary
items, if any) by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year.

Insurance Claims

Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims
admitted / expected to be admitted and to the extent that the
amount recoverable can be measured reliably and it is reasonable
to expect ultimate collection.

Goods and Services tax input credit

Goods and Services tax input credit is accounted for in the books in
the period in which the underlying service received is accounted and
when there is reasonable certainty in availing / utilising the credits.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation
uncertainty

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 1, the management is required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

The Company has used the principles of prudence in applying
judgments, estimates and assumptions including sensitivity analysis
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and based on the current estimates, the Company expects to fully
recover the carrying amount of trade receivables including unbilled
receivables, goodwill, intangible assets and investments. The
eventual outcome of impact of the global health pandemic may be
different from those estimated as on the date of approval of these
financial statements.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements based on
estimates and assumptions, which have the significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the standalone financial statements.

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for temporary differences to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available

Property, Plant and Equipment

against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies.

Actuarial Valuation

The determination of Company’s liability towards defined benefit
obligation to employees is made through independent actuarial
valuation including determination of amounts to be recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss and in other comprehensive
income. Such valuation depends upon assumptions determined
after considering inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant
factors such as supply and demand factors in the employment
market. Information about such valuation is provided in notes to
the standalone financial statements.

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Description of Assets Land - Buildings - Plant and Office | Furniture and Vehicles Computers Total
Freehold (Own use) | Equipments | equipments fixtures

I.  Gross Carrying Amount

Balance as at 1 April, 2020 195.05 2,746.78 2,494.71 148.66 531.98 14.03 58.90 6,190.11
Additions - - 9.47 4.60 0.96 - 2.67 17.70
Disposals - - - - - - - -
Balance as at 31 March, 2021 195.05 2,746.78 2,504.18 153.26 532.94 14.03 61.57 6,207.81
Il.  Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at 1 April, 2020 - 820.01 1,643.38 122.69 308.99 14.03 53.26 2,962.36
Depreciation expense for the year - 73.61 178.12 20.26 62.90 - 3.15 338.04
Eliminated on disposal of assets - - - - - - - -
Balance as at 31 March, 2021 - 893.62 1,821.50 142.95 371.89 14.03 56.41 3,300.40
lll.  Net carrying amount (I-11)

Balance as at 31 March, 2021 195.05 1,853.16 682.68 10.31 161.05 - 5.16 2,907.41
Balance as at 31 March, 2020 195.05 1,926.77 851.33 25.97 222.99 - 5.64 3,227.75
I.  Gross Carrying Amount

Balance as at 1 April, 2021 195.05 2,746.78 2,504.18 153.26 532.94 14.03 61.57 6,207.81
Additions - - 36.14 23.38 0.93 - 7.22 67.67
Disposals - - - (5.71) - - (17.21) (22.92)
Balance as at 31 March, 2022 195.05 2,746.78 2,540.32 170.93 533.87 14.03 51.58 6,252.56
Il.  Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at 1 April, 2021 - 893.62 1,821.50 142.95 371.89 14.03 56.41 3,300.40
Depreciation expense for the year - 67.85 178.34 20.80 62.72 - 3.25 332.96
Eliminated on disposal of assets - - - (5.71) - - (17.21) (22.92)
Balance as at 31 March, 2022 - 961.47 1,999.84 158.04 434.61 14.03 42.45 3,610.44
Ill.  Net carrying amount (I-11)

Balance as at 31 March, 2022 195.05 1,785.31 540.48 12.89 99.26 - 9.13 2,642.12
Balance as at 31 March, 2021 195.05 1,853.16 682.68 10.31 161.05 - 5.16 2,907.41

No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at 31 March 2022 for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.



MAHINDRA WORLD CITY DEVELOPERS LIMITED

CIN No. U92490TN1997PLC037551

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

5a

Intangible Assets

3.1 Movement of Capital Work in Progress

(Amounts in INR Lakhs) (Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Description of Assets Computer Total Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
Software 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021
. Gross Ca"v'"}l Amount Opening Balance 30.00 27.00
/E;gl;igzisas at 1 April, 2021 59.16 59.16 Additions B 300
Disposals - - Subtotal 30.00 30.00
Balance as at 31 March, 2022 50.16 50.16 Capitalised during the year - -
Il.  Accumulated amortisation Closing Balance 30.00 30.00
Balanqe a§ at 1 April, 2021 59.16 59.16 3.2 Capital Work-in-Progress
Amortisation expense for the year - -
Eliminated on disposal of assets - - - Grey Water Network
Balance as at 31 March, 2022 59.16 59.16 Description of Assets As at As at
Il Net carrying amount (I-1l) March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Balance as at 31 March, 2022 - — Capital Work-in-Progress 30.00 30.00
Balance as at 31 March, 2021 - -
Grey Water Network
(Amounts in INR Lakhs) Less than 1 year 30.00
Computer 1-2 years 30.00

Description of Assets Software Total 2-3 years
l.  Gross Carrying Amount More than 3 years
Balance as at 1 April, 2021 59.16 59.16 Total 30.00 30.00
Additions - - Investments
Disposals - - Particulars For the For the
Balance as at 31 March, 2022 59.16 59.16 year ended year ended
I. Accumulated amortisation 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021
Balance as at 1 April, 2021 59.16 59.16 Cost
Amortisation expense for the year - - Unquoted Investments (all fully paid)
Eliminated on disposal of assets - - Investments in Associate ............c..ccccovvivrnnnes 1,300.00 1,300.00
Balance as at 31 March, 2022 59.16 59.16 Mahindra Integrated Township Limited
Il Net carrying amount (I-l) 1,30,00,000 Shares @ INR 10 Per Share
Balance as at 31 March, 2022 - - Investments in Joint VENtUre ............cc.c.evvveee.. 10,200.00 10,200.00
Balance as at 31 March, 2021 - - Mahindra Industrial Park chennai Limited
Refer note 2 for Company’s policy on recognition and measurement 10,20,00,000 Shares @ INR 10 Per Share
of Property Plant, Equipment, Intangible and Depreciation/amortisation Total Unquoted Investments at Cost............... 11,500.00 11,500.00

methods used.

Other Financial Assets

Particulars

Advances, Considered good

Advances for purchase of land - unsecured

Advances, Considered doubtful

Advances for purchase of land - unsecured
Less: Provision for advances considered doubtful
Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise

Fixed deposits under lien
Recoverable Expense

Total Other assets

Movement in the allowance for credit loss

Particulars
Balance at beginning of the year
Addition during the year

Balance at end of the year

As at 31 March, 2022

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)
As at 31 March, 2021

Non-current Current Non-current Current
34.05 - 34.05

(34.05) - (34.05)

- 5.02 -

- 5.02 -

As at As at

31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021

34.05 17.00

- 17.05

34.05 34.05
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Other Assets
Particulars

Advances

Advances to employees

Advances for purchase of land - secured***
Advances for purchase of land - unsecured
Advances to suppliers Unsecured considered good

Others

Security Deposits

Prepaid Expenses

Balances with statutory / government authorities (Other than Income tax)**

TORAl DTN ASSEES ..ot

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

As at 31 March, 2022 As at 31 March, 2021

Non-current Current Non-current Current
- 0.20 - 0.20

- 3,347.04 - 3,347.04

- 6.51 - 6.12

- 3,353.75 - 3,3563.36

67.52 3.50 67.33 3.50
16.28 27.43 17.54 21.60
112.87 - 37.98 -
196.66 30.93 122.85 2510
196.66 3,384.68 122.85 3,378.46

** Balance with Government authorities as at 31st March 2022 represents payment of 37.98 lakhs made under protest against service tax demands.
*** Advance for purchase of Land is secured by equitable Mortgage by deposit of title deeds of 39.19 acres of land at Varadarajapuram, Kancheepuram Dist.

Tamilnadu.

7. Inventories
(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

As at As at
31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021

Particulars

Work in progress (representing cost of land

and related expenditure).........cocoeeereeerineenne 27,637.50 27,637.50
INVENEOTY ..o 42.97 26.53
Total Inventories ...............ccccooevvveeevcvecicnnne 27,680.47 27,664.03

() The Cost of inventories recognised as expenses during the
year in respect of continuing operations is NIL (2020-21 was
INR 626.89 Lakhs).

(i)  The Carrying amount of inventories pledged as security for liabilities
- Refer note 12 A Non Current Borrowings.

(i) Mode of Valuation of Inventories is Cost or Net Realisable Value
whichever is lower.

(iv) Borrowing costs inventorised relates to interest on borrowings referred
in Notes 12A considered in the ratio of land inventories pending to be
developed to the total inventories.

(v) Based on detailed assessment and evaluation of impact of the
COVID-19 epidemic, the management concluded that the realiseable
value of these inventories will not be lower than the carrying value as
stated above.

Trade Receivables
(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

As at As at
31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021

Particulars

Trade Receivables:

Unsecured Considered Good.............c.cccoeeuc.. 403.04 439.52
Receivables with significant credit risk............ 180.65 85.88
Less: Provision for expected credit losses ...... (180.65) (85.88)
Total Trade Receivables................................. 403.04 439.52

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and the average credit period on
service rendered is as per the terms of the service agreement with clients.
Credit period allowed to customers varies between 7 days to 30 days.

Refer Note No.31 for Credit Risk Management on Receivables.

8(a)

8(b)

Ageing for trade receivables from the due date of payment for each of
the category is as follows:
(Amounts in INR Lakhs)
As at As at

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Undisputed Trade Receivable - Considered
good - unsecured
Not Due

0 months - 6 months 293.04 321.31
6 months -1 year 42.46 64.75
1-2 Years 28.49 23.01
2-3 years 4.25 9.96
More than 3 years 34.80 20.49
Trade Receivable - Credit impaired
Not Due - -
0 months - 6 months - -
6 months -1 year - -
1-2 Years - -
2-3 years - -
More than 3 years - -
Total 403.04 439.52
Movement in the allowance for credit loss
(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at

31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021
Balance at beginning of the year 85.88 54.25
Additions/reversals during the year 94.77 31.63
Balance at end of the year........................... 180.65 85.88

Cash and Cash Equivalents
(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

As at As at
31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021

Particulars

Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:

— 0N current aCCOUNTS .......ccvvrvrrreeiieririeiiens 60.84 181.14
— Cheques on hand .... - 17.25
Cash on hand 0.1 -
Fixed Depoits- Short Term ........c.cccoceevvivienne 1,300.00

Total Cash and cash equivalents 1,360.95 198.39
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10.

Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents
Particulars

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents as per Balance Sheet

Overdraft with Banks (Note 12B)

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents as per Statement of Cashflow

Equity

Particulars

Authorized shares

2,50,00,000 Ordinary Equity Shares of Rs.10 each with Voting rights
50,00,000 Unclassified Shares of Rs.10 each with Voting rights
65,00,000 Cumulative Redeemable preference shares of Rs. 100 each...

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares

2,00,00,000 Ordinary Equity Shares of Rs.10 each with Voting rights

Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital

(U]

(ii)

(if)

MAHINDRA WORLD CITY DEVELOPERS LIMITED
CIN No. U92490TN1997PLC037551

Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Particulars

Ordinary Equity Shares
Year Ended 31 March, 2021

NO. OF SRAIES ...t
AIMOUNT. ..

Year Ended 31 March, 2022
No. of Shares ...
Amount

(a) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

As at As at

31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021
1,360.95 198.39
(2,765.25) (3,638.30)
(1,404.30) (3,439.91)

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

As at
31 March, 2022

As at
31 March. 2021

2,500.00 2,500.00

500.00 500.00

6,500.00 6,500.00

9,500.00 9,500.00

2,000.00 2,000.00

2,000.00 2,000.00

Opening Changes during Closing
Balance the year Balance
20,000,000 - 20,000,000
2,000.00 - 2,000.00
20,000,000 - 20,000,000
2,000.00 - 2,000.00

‘The Company has only one class of Equity Shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each holder of Equity Shares is entitled to one vote per share.
Dividends are paid in Indian Rupees. The dividends proposed by the Board of Directors are subject to the approval of the shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting. Repayment of capital will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held.

Repayment of capital will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held.

Details of shareholdings by the Promoter’s of the Company

Class of shares / Name of shareholder

Equity shares with voting rights

Mahindra Lifespace Developers Limited

Tamilnadu Industrial Development Gorporation Limited

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

Name of the shareholder

Equity shares with voting rights
— Mahindra Lifespace Developers LIMItEd............coeueuiniriiiiniiceecseese e

— Tamilnadu Industrial Development Corporation LIMited ...........cccccooveviiiicveiicececeeece s

As at 31st March, 2022

Number of

shares held % holding

1,77,99,999
22,00,000

89.00%
11.00%

As at 31 March, 2022

As at 31st March, 2021

% change

Number of duringthe
shares held % holding period
1,77,99,999 89.00% 0.00%
22,00,000 11.00% 0.00%

As at 31 March, 2021

No. % holding No.

in the class
1,77,99,999 89% 1,77,99,999
22,00,000 1% 22,00,000

% holding
in the class

89%
11%

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial
interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.
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11.

12A.

12.B

22

Other Equity
(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Particulars Other Equity

General Capital Retained Total

Reserve Redemption earnings

Reserve

Balance as at 1 April, 2020 345.00 6,500.00 5,212.44 12,057.44
Loss for the year - - (1,016.82) (1,016.82)
Other Comprehensive Loss (Net of tax) .... - - 5.39 5.39
Balance as at 31 March, 20271 .................c.ooovimirieeee ettt 345.00 6,500.00 4,201.01 11,046.01
Loss for the year - - (2,032.03) (2,032.03)
Other Comprehensive Income (Net of tax) - - (0.81) (0.81)
Balance as at 31 March, 2022..... 345.00 6,500.00 2,168.17 9,013.17

General Reserve: The general reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. There is no policy of regular
transfer. Items included under General Reserve shall not be reclassified back into the Statement of Profit & Loss.

Capital Redemption Reserve: The Capital Redemption Reserve was created against redemption of Preference Shares.

Retained Earnings: This reserve represents cumulative profits of the Company and effects of remeasurement of defined benefit obligations. This reserve can be
utilised in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013.

Non current borrowings

Details of Long term Borrowings of the Company: (Amounts in INR Lakhs)
Description of the instrument Currency of Coupon Rate Repayment Number of Date of earliest ~ Amortised cost ~ Amortised cost
Loan Bullet (or) Instalments Redemption as at as at

Instalment (or) Conversion 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021

Secured Borrowings:
a)  Term Loans

(i) ~ From Financial Institution

75% of
- Sales / lease
- % 9 - -
HDFC Limited - Term Loan | ......ccccevviveriieeiceeceans INR 8.75% to 11% prooceeds and 12 Aug-21 22,855.02
Instalment
Total Secured Borrowings................ccococoerriccnnccnnne - 22,855.02
Total Non Current Borrowings ................ccccoooeeviivrirnnne - 22,855.02

Term Loan from Financial Institution - Secured Borrowings
The company originally availed Term Loan from HDFC Ltd ; Sanctioned amount INR 32,500.00 Lakhs. The loan carried an interest rate of 8.95%.

The Term loans is secured by equitable Mortgage by deposit of title deeds of 59.098 acres of land at Mahindra World City , Chengalpattu with carrying value of
INR 2,593 Lakhs and 236.027 acres of land in NH16 near Ponneri/Gummidipundi with a carrying value of INR 20,166 Lakhs. On 31st March 2022, the company
availed ICD from one of its group company Tech Mahindra Ltd for Rs. 250 Crs at 5.5% for 120 days and used for the prepayment of the Term Loan outstanding
(Principal amount of Rs. 228.18 Crs. and interest installement of Rs. 8.41 Crs.)

The company has received offer for new term loan from HDFC Ltd on 31st March 2022 and is expected accept the facily to withdraw new term loan within next 3 months.
There are no defaults in case of either interest or principal with respect to payments for the above borrowings.

Current Borrowings (Amortised cost)
Details of Current Borrowings of the Company:
(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Description of the instrument Currency Coupon As at As at
of Loan Rate 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021
A. Unsecured Borrowings at amortised cost:
HDFC Bank Limited - Overdraft of INR 25 Crores- Repayable on Demand INR  7.90% to 9.50% 1,199.92 1,514.50
Tech Mahindra Limited- ICD Loan repayable within 1 year INR 5.50% 25,000.00 -
Mahindra Integrated Township Limited- ICD Loan repayable within 1 year INR 8.30% 1,000.00 -
Mahindra Residential Developers Limited- ICD Loan repayable within 1 year INR 8.30% 4,940.00 4,200.00
Total Unsecured Borrowings 32,139.92 5,714.50
B. Secured Borrowings at amortised cost:
Axis Bank Limted - Overdraft of INR 25 Crores - Repayable on Demand INR  7.90% to 9.00% 1,565.33 2,123.80
Total Secured Borrowings 1,565.33 2,123.80
Total Current borrowings 33,705.25 7,838.30

Axis Bank Overdraft is secured.
- by First pari passu charge of current assets of the Company excluding inventories.
- by Second/Residual charge on Lands mortgaged to HDFC Limited for Term loan availed. (Refer note no. 12A)
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13.

14.

15.

Other Financial Liabilities at amortised cost

Particulars
Deposits

Security deposits reCEIVEd fTOM IBSSEES .......c.vururiireeeiriseieirieie sttt

Others

Payable on purchase of PPE

Interest aCCrued DUL MOT QUE ..........cueviiiciiici e
EArNESt MONBY TEPOSIE ......vvevieiieiiieieieiete ettt bbbttt bbbt benas

Rental / Other deposit from customers

Total Other Financial LIabilities.................cccccovuiieiiiiecee et

Other Liabilities

Particulars

AVANCE TTOM CUSTOMIEIS ...ttt s s nnas
STALUOrY dUES PAYADIE ... s
DEFEITEA INCOME ...ttt e et ee s e s nnnennn

UNBAMEA INCOME. ..ottt e st e s e s nnnennn

Total Other LIabilifes..............ccoooiiiiiiici e

Income Tax
(@) Income Tax recognised in profit or loss
(Amounts in INR Lakhs)
Particulars For the For the
Year Ended Year Ended

March 31, 2022  March 31, 2021
Current Tax:
In respect of current year .....................

(852.54) (185.26)

Deferred Tax...........cccocovvvevicievicnnn,

Tax of earlier years (Net)..........ccccovnene - 366.35
Total income tax (credit)/expense on

income from operations ...................... (852.54) 181.09

(b)

Reconciliation of estimated income tax expense at tax rate to
income tax expense reported in Statement Profit aand Loss is as

follows:
(Amounts in INR Lakhs)
Particulars For the For the
Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2022  March 31, 2021
Loss before tax (2,884.57) (835.73)
Income tax expense calculated at
statutory rate*** (840.00) (243.00)

As at 31 March, 2022

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)
As at 31 March, 2021

Non-current Current Non-current Current
1.64 545.40 1.54 -

1.64 545.40 1.54 -

- - - 5.00

- 203.24 - 84.28

- 2.50 - 2.80

- 42.24 - 43.45

- 247.98 - 135.53

1.64 793.38 1.54 135.53

As at 31 March, 2022

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)
As at 31 March 2021

Non-current Current Non-current Current

- 277.00 - 267.00

- 24.11 - 22.74

825.79 119.29 884.24 101.18

453.69 5.76 453.99 5.13

1,279.47 426.16 1,338.23 396.05
(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Particulars For the For the
Year Ended Year Ended

Disallowance u/s 14A for expense
incurred on investment ............c.cccoceene.

Changes based on return of income
filed for the year

Non deductible exepenses under
INCOME taAX..v.ceeceeeeee s

Changes in Deferred tax asset/Liability due
to Effective rate changes.............ccoceuunnee

OIS e

Income tax (credit)/expense
recognised in statement of profit
and 0SS .........coovveircee

March 31,2022  March 31, 2021

- 33.49

1.23 21.71

- 366.35
(13.77) 2.54
(852.54) 181.09
(852.54) 181.09

*** The Tax Rate used for 31st March 2022 and 31st March 2021
reconciliations above are the corporate tax rate of 29.12%
payable by Corporate Entities in India on taxable profits under

Indian Income Tax Act laws.
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(¢) Movement in deferred tax balances
(Amounts in INR Lakhs)
For the Year ended 31 March, 2022

Particulars Opening  Recognised in Recognised Earlier year Closing
Balance  Profit or Loss in OCI Adjustments Balance

Tax effect of items constituting deferr Liabiliti

Property, Plant and EQUIPMENT...........cooiuririeiieieeseeesise et 311.90 (48.86) - - 263.04

INtErest INVENLOMISEA..........c.vvriicicccc s - - - - -

FVTPL Financials Asset & LIaDIItIES ............ccccviuriuiriiiniicisrceeseeeseeeis 18.00 - - - 18.00

Total Deferred Tax Liabilities 329.90 (48.86) - - 281.04

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets

Section 43B diSAIOWANCES .........cvverireeriircieireeeeeseseie ettt 13.76 3.08 0.33 - 17.17
BUSINESS 10SS ...ttt ettt n et s et nnanenn 294.00 713.00 - - 1,007.00
Unabsorbed depreCiation 0SS .........ccviveuriiieiriieieicesece e 132.00 60.00 - - 192.00
Provision for doubtful AEDES ...........cueuriieeecce s 34.93 27.60 - - 62.52
IAT CFBAI...... vt 113.11 - - 113.11
Total Deferred Tax Asset 587.80 803.68 0.33 - 1,391.80
Net Deferred Tax ASSEL.............ccocooiriiiiieieieie et (257.90) (852.54) (0.33) - 1,110.76

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)
For the Year ended 31 March, 2021

Particulars Opening  Recognised in Recognised Earlier year Closing
Balance  Profit or Loss in OCI Adjustments Balance
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax Liabilities
Property, Plant and EQUIPMENT...........coiiiiiciiiiecsicseee s 345.87 (33.97) - - 311.90
INEErESt INVENTOMISBA. .......eeeeeeeeeeee ettt 2,305.03 - - (2,305.03) -
FVTPL Financials ASSet & LIabilties ..........coveuiiririieiiiiieseeseesee s 16.18 1.82 - - 18.00
Total Deferred Tax Liabilities 2,667.08 (32.15) - (2,305.03) 329.90
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets
Section 43B diSANOWANCES ......cvuvvirreiriiireieiiee e 17.42 (1.45) (2.21) - 13.76
BUSINESS [0SS -.v.vevrieiieieieiieiseite ettt es 179.00 78.39 - 36.61 294.00
Unabsorbed depreciation 0SS ........c.cucuiveveuercuiieieieeicieieieee et 70.01 61.99 - - 132.00
Provision for doubtful dEDES ...........cevriivericeeee e 20.75 14.18 - - 34.93
MIAT CFEAIE......v ettt nses 616.25 - (503.14) 113.11
Total Deferred TaX ASSEL...........cccccooviiiieiiiiecee et 903.43 153.11 (2.21) (466.53) 587.80
Net Deferred Tax Liabilities ...............ccccooeviviiieiiccieceseee s 1,763.65 (185.26) 2.21 (1,838.50) 257.90

16. Provisions
(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31 March, 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Non-current Current Non-current Current

Income Tax (Net of Advance Tax Rs INR. - 142.42 - 36.19

Employee Benefits (Refer note 29)

GTATUIY 1.t - 23.94 - 19.67

LEAVE ENCASHIMENT........ooiuiiiiiiiiici bbb 21.30 13.72 22.61 4.98

TOEAI PIOVISIONS .........oouiiniiniineiciieici s 21.30 180.08 22.61 60.84
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17a

17b

18.

19.

Trade Payables

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Trade payable - Micro and small enterprises™ .. 65.45 14.26

Trade payable - Other than micro and small
enterprises 827.80 795.19
893.25 809.45

*(i) Trade Payables are payables in respect of the amount due on account of
goods purchased or services received in the normal course of business.

Usually, Credit period with vendors varies from 15 days to 30 days.
(i) Refer Note 34 for Disclosures on Micro and Small Enterprises.

Ageing for trade payable from the due date of payment for each of the

category is as follows:

As at
Particulars 31 March 2022
Undisputed dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises
Unbilled
Not Due 62.17
0 months - 1 year 3.28
1-2 Years -
2-3 years _
More than 3 years -

ndisput f creditors other than
micro enterprises and small enterprises
Unbilled
Not Due
0 months - 1 year
1-2 Years
2-3 years
More than 3 years

818.18
6.55
3.07

As at
31 March 2021

10.98
3.28

570.57
15.74
208.88

Total 893.25

809.45

Revenue from Operations

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Particulars For the For the
year ended year ended

31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021

Land Lease Premium - 613.00
Sale of land ....... - 1,226.01
Rental income. 88.67 76.40
Operation and maintenance income ... 2,392.26 2,329.87
Club membership fees 68.19 67.76
Club Annual subscription fees 34.06 43.84
Club Operating Income 137.26 50.16
Project Management Fees 62.04 54.08
Sales Commission Income ............ - 125.01
Other Operational Income Transfer Fees. 67.50 54.25
Total Revenue from Operations......... 2,849.98 4,640.38

Other Income

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

For the
year ended
31 March, 2022

Particulars

Other non operating income

For the
year ended
31 March, 2021

Liabilities no longer required written back......... - 41.25
Interest on Bank Fixed deposits ......... - 0.58
Miscellaneous Income ... 12.42 14.16
Total Other Income ..............cccocoevvvcivicienns 12.42 55.99

20.

21,

22,

23.

MAHINDRA WORLD CITY DEVELOPERS LIMITED
CIN No. U92490TN1997PLC037551

Cost of Projects

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

For the
year ended
31 March, 2022

Particulars

Inventories at the beginning of the year

For the
year ended
31 March, 2021

Work-in-progress 27,637.50 27,573.70
Add: Expenses Incurred during the year
Land and Construction COStS...........cccrevnee. - 1.40
Iterest COSt.......ovvvvcvriiicreereens - 689.29
Less: Inventories at the end of the year
WOrK-in-progress ........ceeveereerncrnieereesinnenenns 217,637.50 27,637.50
Total Cost of Projects ...............c...cccoevvvinnnnne 0.00 626.89

Operation & Maintenance Expenses

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Particulars For the For the
year ended year ended

31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021

Repairs & Maintenance 295.40 227.90
Security 254.42 298.74
Electrical & Mechanical Maintenance............... 466.29 439.10
HOUSEKEEPING ... 191.06 194.28
POWEr & FUBI ... 161.25 175.83
Landscaping maintenance 124.64 122.59
Rates & Taxes.... 114.10 134.78
Bus shuttle - -
Other EXPENSES.........cvvurereeerricireieiieescisnienas 62.99 42.97
Total Operation & Maintenance expenses..... 1,670.15 1,636.19

Employee Benefits Expense

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Particulars For the year For the year
ended ended

31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021

Salaries and wages including bonus* .............. 350.62 319.18
Contributions to provident and other funds ..... 15.95 16.46
Staff welfare expenses .........ccoovevvervverernenns 13.24 5.38
Total Employee benefits expense 379.81 341.02

* Includes charge for Equity Stock options recovered by Mahindra
Lifespaces Developers Limited amounting to Rs. 12.21 Lakhs (Previous

Year Rs. 2.54 Lakhs)

Finance Costs
Particulars For the
year ended

31 March, 2022
(@) Interest expense on:

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

For the
year ended
31 March, 2021

(i)  Termloan........iiin 2,045.85 2,151.67
(i) Loan from Related parties........... 398.69 259.60
(i) Overdraft........ccooveveriririeis 267.33 284.56
(iv)  Other Interest .........ccccoovuvrunnnne 0.11 111
Less: Interest inventorised™ ..o - (689.29)
Net Finance Costs.................ccccoeveverieriiennn, 2,711.98 2,007.65
*Borrowing cost inventorised refers to interest on Borrowings in

Note 12A considered at the average rate of 9.05% p.a.
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24.

25.

26.

26

Other expenses (Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Particulars For the For the
year ended year ended
31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021
Power and fuel 29.64 40.42
Rent including lease rentals 10.49 9.10
Repairs and maintenance 7.05 8.07
Insurance 26.85 23.80
Rates and taxes 69.07 10.94
Communication 37.59 22.65
Travelling and conveyance 8.58 2.13
Printing and stationery 219 2.83
Business promotion 16.48 75.88
Office Maintenance expenses 21.84 35.34
Legal and professional 133.51 104.99
Payments to auditors* (Refer below for details
of Audit fees) 13.60 13.60
Directors sitting fees 1.20 1.40
Donations 0.20 0.50
Services outsourced 99.54 93.97
Allowances for expected credit losses 94.77 48.68
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities
(refer Note No 25) 4.03 17.04
Club expenses 72.67 69.89
Miscellaneous expenses 2.79 1.08
Total Other eXpenses.............ccocooeeverrierennes 652.09 582.31

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

* Payment to auditors (excluding taxes) For the For the
year ended year ended

31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021

Statutory Audit and Limited Reviews .............. 11.20 11.20
Tax Audit 2.00 2.00
Certification and Other Services 0.40 0.40
13.60 13.60

Expense on Corporate Social Responsibility (Amounts in INR Lakhs)

For the For the
year ended year ended
31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021

Particulars

Gross amount required to be spent by the

company during the year 4.03 17.04

Amount spent during the year on

Contribution to Nanhi Kali foundation - 8.52

Supporting Primary Health Centre - 5.11

Support to School for Enhancing Quality of

Education - -

Contribution to District Collector for Covid-19

prevention measures - 3.00

Awareness programmes -Solid waste

Management & others 4.03 0.41
4.03 17.04

Segment information

Business segments

The Company operates in only one business segment, i.e. ‘lease of land
and properties constructed’ based on the nature of the services and
products, the risks and returns etc. This has been determined in the
manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Manager
regarded as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”). The Company
operates only in India. The conditions prevailing in India being uniform,
no separate geographical disclosure within India is considered necessary.

27.

28.

29.

Earnings per Share
(Amounts in INR Lakhs)
For the For the

year ended year ended
31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021

Particulars

Loss for the year attributable to owners of the

Company (2,032.03) (1,016.82)
Weighted average number of equity shares

(in Nos) 2,00,00,000 2,00,00,000
Earnings per share from continuing operations

- Basic and Diluted (in Rs. )

((face value of Rs.10/- each) (10.16) (5.08)

Contingent liabilities and Capital Commitments

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

As at As at
31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021

Particulars

Contingent liabilities (to the extent not
provided for)

Income Tax Demands* 10,181.93 -

Service tax demands received ............ccccoo..... 493.21 493.21
(The above amount is based on demand raised,

which the Company is contesting with the

concerned authorities. Outflows, if any, arising

out of this claim would depend on the outcome

of the decision of the appellate authorities and

Company'’s rights for future appeals.)

Total Contingent Liabilities ........................... 10,675.14 493.21

* The National Faceless Assessment Centre, Delhi passed an assessment
Order under Section 147 rw.s 144 of the IT Act on 29.03.2022 for an
amount of Rs 101.82 Crs including an interest of Rs 42 Crs. The company
filed a Writ petition on 21st April 2022 (Filing Number is WMP/43619/2022
in WP(SR) 43616/2022) pleading to stay all further proceedings pursuant
to the Impugned Order and issue orders for fresh hearing u/s 147.

Employee Benefits
a) Defined Contribution plans

The Company makes Provident fund contribution to defined
contribution plans for the employees. Under the scheme, the
company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the
payroll cost to the fund the benefits. The Company recognized
Rs. 15.95 Lakhs (PY Rs. 16.46 Lakhs) for Provident fund & Other
funds contributions in the statement of profit and Loss. The
contributions payable to these plans by the company are at rates
specified in the rules of the scheme.

b) Defined Benefit Plans

The Company’s obligation towards gratuity is defined benefit plan.
The gratuity expense is included under ‘Employee Benefit Expenses’
in Note 22 Employee benefits expense. The company has funded
the gratuity Liability through LIC Scheme. The details of actuarial
valuation are given below:

Gratuity:

The Company operates a gratuity plan covering qualifying employees. The
benefit payable is the greater of the amount calculated as per the Payment
of Gratuity Act, 1972 or the Company scheme applicable to the employee.
The benefit vests upon completion of five years of continuous service and



once vested it is payable to employees on retirement or on termination
of employment. In case of death while in service, the gratuity is payable
irrespective of vesting. The Company makes annual contribution to the
group gratuity scheme administered by the Life Insurance Corporation of
India through its Gratuity Trust Fund. Through its defined benefit plans the
Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are
detailed below:

Investment risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability (denominated in Indian
Rupee) is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference
to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds.

Interest risk

A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability; however,
this will be partially offset by an increase in the return on the plan’s debt
investments.

Longevity risk

The present value of defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference
to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during and
after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan
participants will increase the plan’s liability.

Salary risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by
reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in
the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

The significant actuarial assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial
valuations were as follows:

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Gratuity (Funded)
2021-22 2020-21

Net Liabilities recognized in the balance sheet

Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation 53.56 46.97

Fair Value of Plan assets 29.61 27.30

Liabilities recognised in the balance sheet................ 23.95 19.67

Expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Past service cost - -

Current Service cost 3.14 4.24

Interest cost 291 3.25

Expected return on plan assets..........oocvveeeviviieiriens (2.85) (2.01)
Actuarial (gains) / LOSSES .......ccvvvereeivrrrereriiisireneins 1.14 (7.36)
Total XPENSES........c..coovvrviiiieiee s 4.34 (1.88)
Change in present value of Defined Benefit obligation

Present Value of the obligation at the beginning of the

YBAN ¢t 46.97 53.69

PaSt SEIVICE COSL......c.cvevirieciiiieiricee s - -

Current SErvice COSt.......ovrerureererreresneieeserereeeerenees 3.14 4.24

INTErest COSE ..o s 2.91 3.25

Actuarial (Gains) /Losses... 1.91 (7.36)
Benefits Paid (1.37) (6.85)
Present value of the obligation as at the end of the year .. 53.56 46.97

Change in fair value of plan assets
Present value of plan assets as the beginning of the year.... 27.30 25.52

Expected return on plan assets 3.69 2.01
Contributions made - -
Benefits paid and Charges .............cccccerueriiniiciiininnns (1.37) (0.23)
Present value of plan assets at the end of the year.... 29.62 27.30
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CIN No. U92490TN1997PLC037551

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Gratuity (Funded)
2021-22 2020-21

e. Principal actuarial assumptions

Discount Rate 6.03% 6.29%
Expected return on plan assets 6.03% 6.29%
Expected rate of Salary increase.... 10.00% 8.00%
Attrition Rate 20.00% 10.00%
MOTEAIILY ..o LIC (2006-08) Ultimate

mortality tables
f. Estimate of amount of contribution in the immediate
NEXEYBAI.........oiiicc s 23.94 19.67

g. Estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation take
account of inflation, seniority, promotions, increments and other relevant
factors such as supply and demand in the employment market.

h. Basis used to determine expected rate of return - The Gratuity Fund is
managed by the Life Insurance Corporation of India and they have not
made available the information on major categories of plan assets and the
expected rate of return on each class of plan assets.

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Experience adjustment as for the years

provided by actuary: 2021-22  2020-21 2019-20 201819 2017-18
Present value of DBO 53.56 46.97 53.69 41.37 28.64
Fair value of plan assets 29.61 27.30 25.52 2419 2214

Experience gain / (loss)
adjustments on plan
liabilities (2.85) (2.01) (1.44) (2.19) (1.01)

Experience gain / (loss)
adjustments on plan assets 0.44 0.24 (0.32) 0.52 (0.51)

Long-Term Compensated Absences
Actuarial assumptions:

Particulars For the year For the year
ended ended

31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021

Discount rate 6.03% 6.47%
Expected return on plan assets 6.03% 6.47%
Salary escalation 10.00% 10.00%
Attrition 20.00% 10.00%

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India
securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations.

The estimate of future salary increases considered, takes into account the
inflation, seniority, promotion, increments and other relevant factors.

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted
principal assumptions is:

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Year Change in | Impact on defined benefit
Assumption obligation

Increase in| Decrease in
assumption | assumption
Discount Rate 2022 0.50% 52.79 54.34
2021 0.50% 45.89 48.10
Salary Growth 2022 0.50% 54.12 53.00
Rate 2021 0.50% 4776 46.20

The above sensitivity analysis are based on a change in an assumption while
holding all other assumptions constant. In practice this is unlikely to occur, and
changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the
sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the
same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the
projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied
as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the Balance sheet.

27



MAHINDRA WORLD CITY DEVELOPERS LIMITED
CIN No. U92490TN1997PLC037551

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analyses
did not change compared to previous period.

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation:

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

As at As at
31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021

Year 1 26.00 4.56
Year 2 5.80 20.45
Year 3 517 2.74
Year 4 4.57 2.69
Year 5 3.94 2.62
Next 5 Years 15.96 19.56

Plan of Assets

The fair value of Company’s pension plan asset as of 31 March, 2022 and
31 March, 2021 by category are as follows:

Asset Category As at As at
31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021

Deposits with Insurance companies 100% 100%

30 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation

31.
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uncertainty

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 2, the management is required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

COVID -19 Impact assessment :

The management assessed the Company’s future projections in light of the
developments due to COVID 19 situation and has reassessed the impact
that it may cause on the Company’s financial and operational performance.
The business activities were temporarily suspended owing to lock down
during the year and post phased out lifting of the lock down, the activities
have commenced in a gradual manner. The Company has credit and term
loan facilities available to meet the project costs and pay off the vendors
and bankers in the immediate 12 months from the date of approval of these
financial statements. The Company expects no additional inflow of capital
towards currently planned development. Based on the above assessment,
the management is of the view that company will be able to continue as
a going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

Financial Instruments
Capital management

The Company manages capital risk in order to maximize shareholders’
profit by maintaining sound/optimal capital structure through monitoring of
financial ratios, such as debt-to-equity ratio and net borrowings-to-equity
ratio on a monthly basis and implements capital structure improvement plan
when necessary. There is no change in the overall capital risk management
strategy of the Company compared to last year.

The Company uses debt ratio as a capital management index and calculates
the ratio as total debt divided by total equity. Total liabilities and total equity
are based on the amounts stated in the financial statements.

The Company is not subject to externally enforced regulation.

Debt-to-equity ratio as of 31st March, 2022 and 31st March, 2021 is
as follows:

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)
31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021

Debt (A) 33,705.25 30,693.31
Equity (B) .... 11,013.17 13,046.01
Debt Equity Ratio (A/B)......ccccouvurincincinnes 3.06 2.35

Categories of financial assets and financial liabilities
(Amounts in INR Lakhs)
As at 31 March, 2022

Amortised FVTPL FvocI Total
Costs
Non-current Assets
Investments in
Associate.............. 1,300.00 - - 1,300.00
Investments in Joint
Venture ................. 10,200.00 - - 10,200.00
Other Financial
ASSEtS ..o 5.02 - - 5.02
Current Assets
Trade Receivables....... 403.04 - - 403.04
Cash and Cash
equivalents........c.ccc.... 1,360.95 - - 1,360.95
Other Financial Assets... - - - -
13,269.01 - - 13,269.01
Non-current Liabilities
Borrowings ........ccccu.... - - - -
Other Financial
Liabilities ........ccrvvrnee 1.64 - - 1.64
Current Liabilities
Borrowings ........ccccu... 33,705.25 - - 33,705.25
Trade Payables ............ 893.25 - - 893.25
Other Financial
Liabilities -
— Non Derivative
Financial Liabilities..... 793.38 - - 793.38
35,393.52 - - 35,393.52

As at 31 March, 2021

Amortised FVTPL FVOCI Total
Costs
Non-current Assets
Investments in
Associate 1,300.00 - - 1,300.00
Investments in Joint
Venture ................ 10,200.00 - - 10,200.00
Other Financial
ASSELS ..o 5.02 - - 5.02
Current Assets
Trade Receivables....... 439.52 - - 439.52
Cash and Cash
equivalents..........c...... 198.39 - - 198.39
Other Financial Assets.. - - - -
12,142.93 - - 12,142.93
Non-current Liabilities
Borrowings................. 22,855.02 - - 22,855.02
Other Financial
Liabilities ...........cc....... 1.54 - - 1.54
Current Liabilities
Borrowings.. 7,838.30 - - 7,838.30
Trade Payables ........... 809.45 - - 809.45
Other Financial Liabilities
— Non Derivative Financial
Liabilities.................. 135.53 - - 135.53
31,639.84 - - 31,639.84
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Financial Risk Management Framework LIQUIDITY RISK

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit i)
risk, liquidity risk and market risk. In order to manage the aforementioned

risks, the Company operates a risk management policy and a program

that performs close monitoring of and responding to each risk factors.

CREDIT RISK
(i) Credit risk management

The amount of trade receivable from Land leasing, Industrial park
maintenance service and property leasing activities as appearing
in the balance sheet of the company shows the amount due from
the customers to whom the Industrial park Maintenance charges,
water charges and property Lease services are provided. Company (i)
executes Land leasing agreement with customers only, entire lease
premium is paid by customers and hence no risk of credit loss in
dues relating to Land leasing premium. Further, As per the company’s
policy, every customer has to deposit 3 to 6 months of Maintenance
charges and/or monthly lease rentals with the company and as per
the terms of the agreement with the customer’s, company is entitled
to adjust the pending dues against the deposits taken from customer
and hence, company is not exposed to any credit loss risk. Further
there has been no instance in past which shows that the company
has written off any significant dues pending and is not exposed to a
credit risk. During the year to the extent where recoverability of debt is
doubtful the company has made provision for expected credit loss.

Particulars

Non-derivative financial liabilities
31 March, 2022
Non-interest bearing
Trade PayabIBS.......c.cveveviceieicteetcee ettt s
CaPItAl CrEAIMOTS .......ocevecve ettt as
Other Financial LIabilitIes..............cveveiiieieieiei e
Variable interest rate instruments
Short term Borrowing — PrNCIPAL........c..cuiuiiriiiiricicire s

Loan term Borrowing — PrNCIPAL..........cccooviiiiieiieicecee e

31 March, 2021
Non-interest bearing
Trade PAYADIE ..o
CaAPILAl CrEAIIONS ...
Other Financial LIabiltIES ..o s
Variable interest rate instruments
Short term Borrowing = PrNCIPAl ..........cc.ceviiiveiiiiieisicesees e

Loan term Borrowing = PrNCIPAL ..........ciuiiiiiiiicicce s

Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with
the board of directors, which has established an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the management of the
Company’s short-, medium- and long-term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The Company manages liquidity
risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and
reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast
and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of
financial assets and liabilities.

Maturities of financial liabilities

The following tables detail the Company’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment
periods. The amount disclosed in the tables have been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay. The
tables include both interest and principal cash flows.

To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted
amount is derived from interest rate curves at the end of the reporting
period. The contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on
which the Company may be required to pay.

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Less than 1-3 3 Years 5 years
1 Year Years to 5 Years and above
893.25 - - -
793.38 - - 1.64

33,705.25 - - -

35,391.88 - - 1.64
809.45 - - -

5.00 - - -
130.53 - - 1.54
7,838.30 - - -
- 18,792.52 4,062.50 -
8,783.28 18,792.52 4,062.50 1.54

The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts are the maximum amounts the Company could be forced to settle under the arrangement
for the full guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations at the end of the reporting period,
the Company considers that it is more likely than not that such an amount will not be payable under the arrangement.
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(iii)

(iv)

Financing arrangements
The Company had access to following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period:
(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Particulars 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021
Secured Bank Overdraft facility
— EXPIrNG WIthin ONE VBT ........cocviveieieieieicieieeteee e 2,234.75 1,361.70
Secured Bank Guarantee Limit (sub limit of CC Credit facility)
— EXPIriNg WIthin ONE YA ......cvoviveicieieieieeieeece et s 20.00 20.00
2,254.75 1,381.70

Maturities of financial assets

The following table details the Company’s expected maturity for its non-derivative financial assets. The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
contractual maturities of the financial assets including interest that will be earned on those assets. The inclusion of information on non-derivative financial
assets is necessary in order to understand the Company’s liquidity risk management as the liquidity is managed on a net asset and liability basis.

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Particulars Less than 1-3 3 Years 5 years
1 Year Years to 5 Years and above

Non-derivative financial assets
31 March, 2022
Non-interest bearing

NON CUITENt INVESTMENL ..ot - - - 11,500.00

SEOUMEY DEBPOSIES .....vvveiiecriicte ettt bbbt n - - - -

Trade RECEIVADIES .........euveiiiicici bbb 403.04 -

Cash and Cash EQUIVAIBNTS ............c..cueviiueieiceeeecee e 1,360.95 - - -

Other Current FINANCIAI ASSEES .........cvueviuiiiieieiriei e - 5.02 - -
TORAL ... 1,763.99 5.02 - 11,500.00

31 March, 2021
Non-interest bearing
NON CUITENE INVESTMENT ..ot s - - - 11,500.00

Trade Receivables..... 439.52 -

Cash and Cash EQUIVAIBNTS ............c.cueviiueieicee et 198.39 - - -

Other Current FINANCIAl ASSEES ..........cveviiiieiriiiesicie et - 5.02 - -
TORAL ... 637.91 5.02 - 11,500.00

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments for both non-derivative financial assets and liabilities is subject to change if changes in
variable interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the reporting period.
MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk such as equity price risk and commodity price risk. The objective of market
risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

There has been no significant changes to the company’s exposure to market risk or the methods in which they are managed or measured.
Currency Risk

The Company undertakes transactions denominated only in India Rupees and hence there is no risk of foreign exchange fluctuations.
Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.
Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on exposure to interest rate for both derivative and non-derivative instruments at the end
of reporting period. For floating rate liabilities, analysis is prepared assuming the amount of liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period
was outstanding for the whole year.
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The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and
borrowings affected, after the impact of hedge accounting. With
all other variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax is
affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Year Currency Increase/ Effect on
decrease in financials
basis points

31 March, 2022 INR +100 337.05

INR -100 (337.05)

31 March, 2021 INR +100 306.93

INR -100 (306.93)
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Related Party Transactions
Details of related parties:

Description of relationship

Ultimate Holding Company

Mahindra & Mahindra Limited(M&M)

Holding Company

Mahindra Lifespaces Developers Limited

(MLDL)
Joint Venture Mahindra Industrial Park Chennai Ltd
(MIPCL)
Associate Mahindra Integrated Township Limited (MITL)
Associate Mahindra Residential Developers Limited

(MRDL)

Key Management Personnel
(KMP)

Chief Executive Offcer

Mr. Vimal Agarwal

Chief Financial Offcer

Ms. Bharathy K

Details of related party transactions during the year ended 31st March, 2022 and balances outstanding as at 31st March, 2022:

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Transactions during the year Utilimate Holding Holding Joint Venture Associate Associate
Company (M&M) Company (MIPCL) (MITL) (MRDL)

Land Sale - - - - -
Operation and maintenance Income 203.68 - - 198.25 19.28
(203.68) - - (217.05) (19.79)

Water charges income 15.95 - - 7.28 1.36
(14.12) - - (5.91) (6.42)

Club income 61.25 - - - -
(43.16) (0.09) (0.40) (0.62) -

Other Services Provided - - 44.49 3.43 1.47
- - (157.45) (3.75) 0.73)

Service received 12.711 7.20 6.91 - -
(9.10) - (13.20) - -

Dividend Paid - - - -
Reimbursement of expenses- Given 11.86 - - - -
(18.58) - - - -

Reimbursement of expenses- Taken - - - - -
ESOP Costs - 12.21 - - -
- (2.54) - - -

Interest Paid - - - - 417.80
- - - - (259.60)

Inter Corporate Deposit received - - - 1,000.00 4,940.00
- - - - (2,200.00)

Intercorporate Deposit / Term loan repaid - - - - 4,200.00

Balance Outstanding as at the year end

Internal corporate deposits(ICD) payable - - - 1,000.00 4,940.00
- - - - (4,200.00)

Security Deposits taken 55.65 - - 66.27 23.07
(55.65) - - (66.27) (23.07)

Receivables 1.76 - - 55.30 7.77
(8.89) - (160.99) (0.46) (0.34)

Payables 3.46 14.16 5.20 26.20 170.28
(3.76) (2.54) - - (84.62)

Note: Figures in bracket relates to the previous year
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Fair Value Measurement
Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value
(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31 March, 2022 As at 31 March, 2021
Carrying amount Fair value  Carrying amount Fair value

Financial assets

Financial assets carried at Amortised Cost

— INVESTMENLS IN EQUITY.....cveveceec bbb 11,500.00 11,500.00 11,500.00 11,500.00
— trade and Other rBCEIVADIES. ..o 403.04 403.04 439.52 439.52
— Cash and cash equivalents 1,360.95 1,360.95 198.39 198.39
— deposits and similar assets 5.02 5.02 5.02 5.02
TORA ... 13,269.01 13,269.01 12,142.93 12,142.93
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities held at amortised cost
— Long term loans from Financial INSHIULONS ..........cooiururierce s - - 22,855.02 22,855.02
— 0D 1imits from BanK ........c.coovuiiieiicnieccc s 2,765.25 2,765.25 3,638.30 3,638.30
— Loans from related parties 30,940.00 30,940.00 4,200.00 4,200.00
— Trade and other payables 893.25 893.25 809.45 809.45
— Other Financial LIabilities ............cccoouiiiiiiiciccsces s 795.02 795.02 137.07 137.07
TORAL.........ooovi 35,393.52 35,393.52 31,639.84 31,639.84
Fair value hierarchy as at 31 March, 2022
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Financial assets carried at Amortised Cost
— INVESTMENLS IN EQUILY.....ceceececec e - 11,500.00 - 11,500.00
— trade and Other reCEIVADIES............co.oviricieecc - 403.04 - 403.04
— €aSh and CaSh EQUIVAIBNTS ..........ocuiiiiieiicie ettt - 1,360.95 - 1,360.95
— dEPOSItS AN SIMIIAT ASSELS ........veveiiiiecic e - 5.02 - 5.02
TORAL.......oooe e - 13,269.01 - 13,269.01
Financial liabilities
Financial Instruments not carried at Fair Value
— Long term loans from Financial INSHEULONS ............ccceveiireieiicecee s - - - -
— OD lIMItS frOM BANK .....cooueeieieiececececcecc ettt a s s s anaees - 2,765.25 - 2,765.25
—10aNS TOM FEIAEA PAMTIES ... .. ceeieceeeece et - 30,940.00 - 30,940.00
— trade and Other PAYADIES ........c.oviiiiice s - 893.25 - 893.25
— Other FINanCial LIADIIIES ......c..ovvueiieiiiieicicee e - 795.02 . 795.02
TOUAL ... - 35,393.52 - 35,393.52
Fair value hierarchy as at 31 March, 2021 (Amounts in INR Lakhs)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Financial assets carried at Amortised Cost
— INVESIMENTS TN EQUILY.......ceecc et - 11,500.00 - 11,500.00
— trade and other receivables................ - 439.52 - 439.52
— cash and cash equivalents . - 198.39 - 198.39
— deposits and similar assets - 5.02 - 5.02
TOUAL ...t - 12,142.93 - 12,142.93
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Financial liabilities

Financial Instruments not carried at Fair Value

— Long term loans from Financial INSHIULIONS ...........cccceviiiiiicccceeeeeeeeee s
— 0D lIMItS frOM BANK ..o
—10anS from rEIAEA PATHIES........cvuiveriiieicicire e
— trade and Other PAYADIES .........cccuiueuiieieriiceieecre ettt

— Other FInanCial LIGDIlITIES .........ovevrurieiiiieeeee s

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
- 22,855.02 - 22,855.02
- 3,638.30 - 3,638.30
- 4,200.00 - 4,200.00
- 809.45 - 809.45
- 137.07 - 137.07
- 31,639.84 - 31,639.84

The fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities included in the level 2 and level 3 categories above have been determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on a discounted cash flow analysis, with the most significant inputs being the discount rate that reflects the credit risk of counterparties.

Ratios
a) Current Ratio

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)
Particulars 2021-22  2020-21 Variance %
Current ASSELS (A) evevvevreereerreeeireieieeeiseieinns 32,829.14 31,680.40
Current Liabilities (B).. 35,998.12  9,240.17

RO (A / B) oo 0.91 343 (73%)

Variance in current ratio is mainly on account of Proceeds from short-term
borrwings from related parties

b)  Debt Equity Ratio

Particulars 2021-22  2020-21 Variance %
Total Debt including interest accrued (A) ........ 33,908.49 30,777.59
EQUILY (B) vvoveeeeerereieeeeee e 11,013.17  13,046.01
Debt Equity Ratio (A /B).......ccccovvvrrcrninn. 3.08 2.36 31%

Variance in Debt Equity Ratio is mainly on account of loss reported during
the year. The company has not recorded any revenue from land lease
premium & Sale of land during the financial year as against INR 18.39
crores of revenue in the previous year

c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio (DSCR)

Particulars 2021-22  2020-21 Variance %
Profit AFtEr TaX.......ccooeeveeeeeeeeeeeee e (2,032.03) (1,016.82)
DePreciation..........coceeeereeerreceereereeeenes 332.94 338.04
Interest (Charged t0 P&L) ......ccovvrvvvrerrrrnirnnn. 2,711.98  2,007.65

Non Cash EXpense..........ccocvvcvevrvcvereicrernnn, 94.77 48.68

Earnings available for Debt Service (A)........ 1,107.66  1,377.55

Debt Service
Interest Payments 2,572.10 2,609.72
Pricipal Repayments 31,976 1,385

Total Debt Serviced (B) ............cccccoevevvrrnee. 34,548 3,995

Debt Service Coverage Ratio
(DSCR) (A / B) ..o 0.03 0.34 (91%)

Reduction in Earning available for Debt Service and Debt service
coverage ratio is mainly on account of loss reported during the year and
the repayment of the term loans during the year. The company has not
recorded any revenue from land lease premium & Sale of land during the
financial year as against INR 18.39 crores of revenue in the previous year

d) Return of Equity (ROE)

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)
Particulars 2021-22  2020-21 Variance %
Profit After TaX.......ococeeeerneireieeerenicienenene (2,032.03) (1,016.82)
NEtWOrth.......cooce e 12,029.59 13,551.73

Ratio (A/B) ..o, (16.89%) (7.50%) 125.13%

Reduction in ROE is mainly on account of loss reported during the year.
The company has not recorded any revenue from land lease premium
& Sale of land during the financial year as against INR 18.39 crores of
revenue in the previous year

e) Inventory Turnover ratio

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)
Particulars 2021-22  2020-21 Variance %
Cost of Land leased (A) - 626.89
Average Inventory (B) 217,672.25 27,632

Ratio (A / B) - 0.02 (100%)

Reduction in Inventory Turnover Ratio is mainly on account of no Cost of
Land Leased booked during the year. The company has not recorded any
revenue from land lease premium & Sale of land during the financial year
as against INR 18.39 crores of revenue in the previous year

f) Trade Receivables turnover ratio

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)
Particulars 2021-22  2020-21 Variance %
Turnover (Credit) (A) ..oeoeerreeeneeieereeeees 2,862.40 4,696.37
Trade Receiavables ( Average) (B) 421.28 510.69

Ratio (A/B) ..o 6.79 9.20 (26%)

Variance in Trade Receivables Ratio is mainly on account of loss reported
during the year. The company has not recorded any revenue from land
lease premium & Sale of land during the financial year as against INR
18.39 crores of revenue in the previous year
g) Trade Payable turnover ratio

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)
Particulars 2021-22  2020-21 Variance %

Project Development Expenses and other
expenses (excluding interest) (A).........c.cc...... 5,746.97  5,532.10

Average Trade payable (B).......c.covurivrrirnnnn 851.35 819.75
Ratio (A/B) ..ccoovveeeeeeeeeeeeee e 6.75 6.75 0%
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h)  Net capital turnover ratio,
(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Particulars 2021-22  2020-21 Variance %

TUINOVET (A) oo 2,862.40 4,696.37

Working Capital (B)........cccovvvvreerirrrrrreiriininnns (3,169) 22,440

R YA:) D 1) 5 (123%)

Variance in Net Capital Turnover Ratio is mainly on account of loss
reported during the year & Proceeds from the short term borrowings from
related parties. The company has not recorded any revenue from land
lease premium & Sale of land during the financial year as against INR
18.39 crores of revenue in the previous year

i) Net profit ratio

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Particulars 2021-22  2020-21 Variance %
Profit After Tax (A) ....oeeveveinsicreeeienas (2,032) (1,017)
REVENUE (B)....vvveiriiieieiieiecieeenie 2,862 4,696
Ratio (A/B) ..o (70.99%) (21.65%) 228%

Variance in Net Profit Ratio is mainly on account of loss reported during
the year & Proceeds from the short term borrowings from related parties.
The company has not recorded any revenue from land lease premium
& Sale of land during the financial year as against INR 18.39 crores of
revenue in the previous year

Additional Information to the Financial Statements

i) Return on Capital employed

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Particulars 2021-22  2020-21 Variance %
Earnings before Interest and Tax (A) ............... (172.59) 1,171.92
Net worth .. 12,029.59 13,551.73

33,705.25 30,693.31

Borrowing

Capital employed (B) ....
Ratio (A / B)

45735 44245
(0.38%)  2.65%  (114%)

Variance in Return on Capital employed is mainly on account of loss
reported during the year & Proceeds from the short term borrowings from
related parties. The company has not recorded any revenue from land
lease premium & Sale of land during the financial year as against INR
18.39 crores of revenue in the previous year

k)  Return on investment.

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Particulars 2021-22  2020-21
Earnings before Interest and Tax (A) ............... (172.59) 1,171.92
Capital employed (B) .....covvvvrvreeriirireiiirrieins 45,735 44,245
Ratio (A / B) ...cooovviiieccseee (0.38%) 2.65%

Variance in Return on investment is mainly on account of loss reported
during the year & Proceeds from the short term borrowings from
related parties. The company has not recorded any revenue from land
lease premium & Sale of land during the financial year as against
INR 18.39 crores of revenue in the previous year

i) Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information collected by the

Management. This has been relied upon by the auditors.

There are no overdue amounts payable to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, as defined in the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 2006, as at the reporting date or anytime during the year and hence no interest has been paid or payable accordingly no additional disclosures have

been made.
(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Si. Particulars As at As at
No. 31 March, 2022 | 31 March, 2021
1 Dues remaining unpaid

Principal 65.45 14.26

Interest - -
2 Interest paid in terms of Section 16 of the MSMED Act along with the amount of payment made to the

supplier beyond the appointed day during the year

Principal paid beyond the appointed date

Interest paid in terms of Section 16 of the MSMED Act

day during the year

3 Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay on payments made beyond the appointed - -

above are actually paid to the small enterprises

4 Further interest due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest due as - -

5 Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid

35a Additional regulatory information
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a) Details of benami property held

No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,

1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder.
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b)  Relationship with struck off companies

The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck
off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of
Companies Act, 1956.

c)  Wilful defaulter

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or any government authority.

d) Utilisation of borrowed funds and securities premium

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds
to any other persons or entities, including foreign entities
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary
shall (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or (b) provide any
guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate
beneficiaries

The Company has not received any fund from any persons
or entities, including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that
the Company shall (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or (b) provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate
beneficiaries

35b

e) Undisclosed income

There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the
current or previous year in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the books of account.

f) Details of crypto currency or virtual currency

The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual
currency during the current or previous year.

g) Registration of Charges or satisfaction with Registrar of
Companies (ROC)

There are no charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered
with the Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period

h)  Whistle Blower-

During the year ended March 31, 2022 and till the date of adoption
of financial statements by board of directors, the Company did not
received any whistle blower compliants.

Discrepancies between books of accounts & quarterly statements
submitted to banks

The company has complied with the requirement of filing of quarterly
returns/statements of current assets with the banks or financial institutions,
wherever applicable, and these returns were in agreement with the books
of accounts for the period ended 30 June 2021, 30 September 2021 and
31 December 2021.

(Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Bank Quarter Particulars Amount as per Amount as
books of reported in the
account | quarterly return/statement
HDFC Bank Apr'21 to June'21 Actual CFS 3,567 3,567
HDFC Bank July'21 to Sep'21 Actual CFS 1,941 1,941
HDFC Bank Oct21 to Dec'21 Actual CFS 1,116 1,116

Merger of Mahindra Integrated Township Ltd (MITL) and Mahindra
Residential Developers Ltd (MRDL) with Mahindra World City
Developers Ltd (MWCDL)

Pursuant to approval received from the Boards of Mahindra Integrated
Township Ltd (MITL), Mahindra Residential Developers Ltd (MRDL), and
Mahindra World City Developers Ltd (MWCDL) for merger of MITL and MRDL
with MWCDL, an application under Section 230 to 232 of the Companies
Act, 2013 has been filed with National Company Law Tribunal, Chennai on
24th December, 2021 for seeking directions from NCLT, Chennai.

Recent Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments
to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules as issued from time to time. On March 23, 2022, MCA amended
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022,
as below.

Ind AS 16 — Property Plant and equipment -

The amendment clarifies that excess of net sale proceeds of items
produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall not be recognized in the
profit or loss but deducted from the directly attributable costs considered
as part of cost of an item of property, plant, and equipment. The effective
date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or
after April 1, 2022. The Company has evaluated the amendment and there
is no impact on its standalone financial statements.

Ind AS 37 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets —

The amendment specifies that the ‘cost of fulfilling” a contract comprises
the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a

36.

37.

contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples
would be direct labor, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate
directly to fulfilling contracts (an example would be the allocation of the
depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in
fulfilling the contract). The effective date for adoption of this amendment is
annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2022, although early adoption
is permitted. The Company has evaluated the amendment and the impact
is not expected to be material.

Other Notes

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its
financial position in these financial statements.

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable
law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any,
on long-term contracts. The company did not have any material
foreseeable losses on long term contracts. The company has not
entered into any derivative contracts.

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. . The Company does not have foreign exchange exposure as at 31
March, 2022.

Leases

The Company has not applied the requirement of IND AS 116 to
short-term leases of all assets that have a lease term of 12 months or
less. Amount recognised as expense in Statement of Profit and Loss is
Rs. 10.49 Lakhs(FY 2020-21 Rs 9.10 Lakhs).
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38. Events after the Reporting period

No material events have occurred after the Balance sheet date and up to the approval of Financial statements.

39. Regrouping and Reclassification

Previous period / year figures have been regrouped / reclassified where found necessary, to conform to current period / year classification.

40. Approval of Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved for issue by the board of directors in the meeting on 23rd April, 2022.

Place: Chennai
Date: 23 April 2022
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For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Mahindra World City Developers Limited

A K Nanda Arvind Subramanian
Chairman Director
(DIN:00010029) (DIN: 02551935)
Vimal Agarwal Bharathy K

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

Antaryami Sahoo
Company Secretary



Annexure A

Form AOC-I

MAHINDRA WORLD CITY DEVELOPERS LIMITED
CIN No. U92490TN1997PLC037551

Salient features of Financial Statements of Subsidiary as per Companies Act, 2013

Nature ASSOCIATES JOINT VENTURES
Name of Subsidiary Mahindra Integrated Mahindra Industrial Park
Township Limited Chennai Limited
The date since when subsidiary was acquired 04th May, 2006 22nd Dec, 2014
Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from
the holding company's reporting period NA NA
Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of
the relevant Financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries NA NA
Share Capital 5,000.00 17,000.00
Reserves & Surplus 4,191.93 322.24
Total Assets 25,603.68 33,238.95
Total Liabilities 16,411.75 16,561.19
Investments 6,629.48 -
Turnover 10,227.36 78.86
Profit/(Loss) before taxation 3,613.24 (973.91)
Provision for taxation 1,012.42 (244.91)
Profit/(Loss) after taxation 2,600.82 (729.00)
Proposed Dividend - -
Extent of shareholding (in percentage) 26.00% 60.00%
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF
MAHINDRA WORLD CITY (JAIPUR) LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of
Mahindra World City (Jaipur) Limited (“the Company”), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Statement
of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the
Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in
Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein
after referred to as “the Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Financial Statements
give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed
under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS”)
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of
the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, its
profit and total comprehensive income, its changes in equity
and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the ‘Auditors’ Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (“the ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the ICAlI's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Financial Statements.

Information other than the Financial Statements and

Auditors’ Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the Directors’
Report and the related annexures, but does not include the
Financial Statements and our Auditors’ Report thereon.

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the Financial Statements or our knowledge
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

MAHINDRA WORLD CITY (JAIPUR) LIMITED
CIN NO. U45209RJ2005PLC021207

Responsibilities of management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the
matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the
preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial performance including
other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing
the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the audit of the Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the Financial Statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit.

We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.
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* Obtain an understanding of internal financial control
relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and contents
of the Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial
Statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable
that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable
user of the Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the
scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work;
and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in
the Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal controls that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order,
2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the
Act and on the basis of such checks of the books and
records of the Company as we considered appropriate
and according to the information and explanations given
to us, we give in Annexure B, a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(@) We have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required
by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss
including Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement
of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows
dealt with by this report are in agreement with the
books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements
comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received
from the directors as on March 31, 2022 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors
is disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of
the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to Financial Statements of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure
A. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on
the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
Company'’s internal financial controls with reference to
Financial Statements.

The Company has not paid/provided any remuneration
to managerial personnel as defined in the Act.
Accordingly, the provisions of Section 197 of the
Act related to the managerial remuneration are not
applicable to the Company.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the
Auditors’ Report in accordance with the requirements
of Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

() The Company has disclosed the impact of
pending litigations on its financial position in
its Financial Statements — Refer Note 32 to the
Financial Statements;

(i) The Company did not have any long-term
contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

(i) There were no amounts which were required
to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company;

(v) (@ The management has represented that, to
the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the Company to or in any other person(s)
or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,



security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

The management has represented that,
to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

Based on such audit procedures that we
considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our
notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b)
contain any material misstatement; and

MAHINDRA WORLD CITY (JAIPUR) LIMITED
CIN NO. U45209RJ2005PLC021207

(v) The final dividend proposed in the previous year
and declared and paid during the year by the
Company is in compliance with Section 123 of the
Act.

For B. K. Khare & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 105102W

Himanshu Goradia
Partner
Membership No. 045668

Mumbai, April 22, 2022 UDIN: 22045668AHPBGL 1046
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other
Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report
of even date]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to
financial statements under Clause (i) of sub-section (3) of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements of Mahindra World City (Jaipur)
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction
with our audit of the Financial Statements of the Company for
the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing
and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business including adherence to the Company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance
Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
system with reference to financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to
Financial Statements

A company’s internal financial control with reference to financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company'’s internal financial control with reference to financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1)
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions
of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the Company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors
of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with
Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control with reference to financial statements
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material
respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the criteria for
internal financial control with reference to financial statements
established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For B. K. Khare & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 105102W

Himanshu Goradia
Partner
Membership No. 045668

Mumbeai, April 22, 2022 UDIN: 22045668AHPBGL 1046
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on other Legal
and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of
even date]

(@) (A) According to the information and explanations

(i)

(ii)

G5

(©)

(e

(a

=

)

=

given to us, the Company has maintained
proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property,
plant and equipment.

(B) According to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has maintained proper
records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

The Company has a regular programme of physical
verification of its property, plant and equipment and
investment property by which the property, plant and
equipment and investment property are verified by the
management according to a programme designed to
cover all the items every year. In our opinion, this
periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature
of its property, plant and equipment and investment
property. In accordance with the programme, the
Company has physically verified property, plant and
equipment and investment properties during the year
and no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

According to the information and explanations given
to us, in respect of the leasehold land on which
the properties are constructed by the Company,
based on examination of the registered lease deeds
provided to us, we report that the lease agreements
are in the name of the Company as at the Balance
Sheet date where the Company is the lessee in the
agreement.

According to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not revalued any of
its Property, Plant and Equipment and investment
property or intangible assets or both during the year.

Based on the audit procedures performed by us
and according to the information, explanations and
representations given to us, no proceedings have
been initiated or are pending against the Company
for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and
rules made thereunder.

According to the information and explanations given
to us, having regard to the nature of inventory, the
physical verification by way of verification of lease
deeds, certificate received from third party confirming
the inventory, site visits by the management
and certification of extent of work completion by
competent persons, is carried out at reasonable
intervals by the management during the year. In

(i)

(iv)

(vii)

our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such
verification by the management is appropriate and
no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate
for each class of inventory were noticed on such
verification between the physical inventory and the
book records.

(b) According to the information and explanations given
to us, the Company has been sanctioned working
capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in
aggregate, from HDFC Bank Limited on the basis
of security of accounts receivables during the year.
The statements of accounts receivables filed by the
Company with HDFC Bank Limited on a quarterly
basis are materially in agreement with the unaudited
books of account as certified by the management.

According to the information and explanations given
to us, the Company has not made investments in or
provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans
or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured,
to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any
other parties during the year. Accordingly, the reporting
under Clauses 3(jii)(a) to 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has not granted any loans or made
any investments or provided any guarantees or security
to the parties covered under Sections 185 and 186 of the
Act. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(iv) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has not accepted deposits under the
provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant
provisions of the Act and the rules framed thereunder.
Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(v) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified
by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of
Section 148 of the Act. We have broadly reviewed the
cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to
the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014,
as amended, specified by the Central Government under
sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act and are of the
opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records
have been made and maintained. We have, however,
not made a detailed examination of the cost records
with a view to determine whether they are accurate or
complete.

(a) According to the information and explanations given
to us and on the basis of our examination of records
of the Company, the amounts deducted / accrued
in the books of account in respect of undisputed
statutory dues including Goods and Services
Tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance,
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Income-tax, Cess and other material statutory dues
have been regularly deposited during the year by the
Company with the appropriate authorities. According
to the information and explanations given to us and
on the basis of our examination of records of the
Company, there were no undisputed statutory dues
payable in respect of Sales tax, Service tax, Duty of
Customs, Duty of Excise and Value Added Tax.

According to the information and explanations given
to us and on the basis of our examination of records
of the Company, there were no arrears of outstanding
statutory dues in respect of Goods and Services Tax,
Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-
tax, Sales tax, Service tax, Duty of Customs, Duty
of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material
statutory dues as on the last day of the financial year
for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given
to us and on the basis of our examination of records
of the Company, there are no statutory dues in
respect of Goods and Services Tax, Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Sales tax, Service tax,
Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax,
Cess and any other material statutory dues as at
March 31, 2022, which have not been deposited with
the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.
According to the information and explanations given
to us and records of the Company examined by
us, the particulars of dues of Urban Land Tax and
Income Tax which have not been deposited as on
March 31, 2022 on account of disputes are as under:

Name of Statute| Nature of Dues | Forum where | Period to Amount
dispute is which the unpaid
pending Amount (Rs. In

relates Lakhs)

The Jaipur Urban Land Jaipur 2006-2016 32,179.39

Development Tax (Shahri Development

Authority Act Jamabandi) Authority

1982

The Income Tax | Income Tax Commissioner | Assessment 32.16

Act, 1961 of Income Tax | Year 2011-

(Appeals) 2012

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to
us, there are no transactions not recorded in the books
of account which have been surrendered or disclosed
as income during the year in the tax assessments under
the Income-tax Act, 1961. Accordingly, the reporting
under Clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the

Company.

(ix)

(a) According to the information and explanations given

to us and based on the audit procedures performed
by us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment
of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of

(xi)

(0)

(€)

(b)

(@)

(b)

interest thereon to any lender during the year.

According to the information and explanations given
to us, the Company has not been declared a willful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any
other lender till the date of our audit report.

According to the information and explanations given
to us and based on the audit procedures performed
by us, the Company has not availed any term loans
during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under
Clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the Balance Sheet of the Company,
we report that funds raised on short-term basis have
not been utilised for long- term purposes as at the
Balance Sheet date.

According to the information and explanations given
to us and on an overall examination of the Financial
Statements of the Company, we report that the
Company has no subsidiaries, associates or joint
ventures. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause
3(ix) (e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations
given to us and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, we report that the Company
has no subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.
Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(ix)(f) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given
to us, the Company has not raised any moneys by way
of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the
reporting under Clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given
to us, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or convertible
debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible)
during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under
Clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

During the course of our examination of the
books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing
practices in India and according to the information
and explanations given to us, we have neither
come across any instance of material fraud by the
Company or on the Company noticed or reported
during the year, nor have we been informed of any
such case by the management.

There has been no report filed by us under sub-



(i)

(i)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

section (12) of Section 143 of the Act in Form ADT-4
as prescribed under Rule 13 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government. Accordingly, the reporting under
Clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(c) As represented to us by the management, no whistle
blower complaints were received by the Company
during the year.

According to the information and explanations given
to us, the Company is not a Nidhi company and the
Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. Accordingly,
the reporting under Clause 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has entered into
transactions with related parties in compliance with the
provisions of Section 188 of the Act. The details of such
related party transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by Indian Accounting
Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

(@) In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us and based on our
examination, the Company has an internal audit
system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

(b) We have considered the Internal Audit reports of the
Company issued till date for the period under audit.

According to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with its directors or persons connected
with them during the year and hence, the provisions
of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(xv)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) According to the information and explanations given
to us, the Company is not required to be registered
under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(xvi)
(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us, the Company has not
conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing
Finance activities. Accordingly, the reporting under
Clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us, the Company is not
a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in
the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India.
Accordingly, the reporting under Clauses 3(xvi)(c)

MAHINDRA WORLD CITY (JAIPUR) LIMITED
CIN NO. U45209RJ2005PLC021207

and 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(xvii) In our opinion and according to the information and

explanations given to us, the Company has not incurred
cash losses in the current financial year as well as in
the immediately preceding financial year. Accordingly,
the reporting under Clause 3(xvii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors

(xix)

Mumbai, April 22, 2022

during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given
to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing
and expected dates of realisation of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge
of the Board of Directors and management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which
causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report that the Company is
not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
Balance Sheet as and when they fall due within a period
of one year from the Balance Sheet date. We, however,
state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability
of the company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and
we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
Balance Sheet date, will get discharged by the Company
as and when they fall due.

(a) According to the information and explanations given
to us, in respect of other than ongoing projects, the
Company has no unspent amount that needs to be
transferred to a Fund specified in Schedule VIl to
the Act in compliance with second proviso to sub-
section (5) of Section 135 of the Act.

(b) According to the information and explanations
given to us, in respect of ongoing projects, the
Company has no unspent amount which needs to be
transferred to a special account in compliance with
sub-section (6) of Section 135 of the Act.

For B. K. Khare & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 105102W

Himanshu Goradia

Partner

Membership No. 045668
UDIN: 22045668AHPBGL 1046



MAHINDRA WORLD CITY (JAIPUR) LIMITED
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 315" MARCH, 2022

Rs. in Lakhs
As at As at

Note No. 31t March, 2022 31" March, 2021
| ASSETS
1 NON-CURRENT ASSETS
(a) Property, Plant and EQUIPMENT ........ccoiiiiiiiiiiiicieeee e 3 5,272.04 5,606.17
(b) Capital Work-in-Progress 4 207.10 150.55
(c) Investment Property ........ 5 8,069.85 8,231.06
(d)  INtANGIDIE ASSEES ...t 6 - -
(e) Financial Assets
(i) SECUIitY DEPOSIES ....eeuverieiiiieiiiesiee ittt 7 118.69 116.90
()  Other Non-current Assets 9 492.53 720.70
SUB-TOTAL ..ot 14,160.21 14,825.38
2  CURRENT ASSETS
() INVENTOMIES. ...ttt b et 10 48,393.01 50,909.84
(b) Financial Assets
(1) INVESIMENTS ... s 11 4,706.63 -
(i) Trade ReCIVADIES ........ccciiiiiiie s 12 1,023.40 734.61
(iili) Cash and Cash EQUIVAIENTS ...........coiiiiiiiiiiiie e 13 138.93 1,347.50
(iv) Bank Balances other than (i) @above..........cccoccoiiiiiiii, 13 5,426.67 514.75
(V) Other Financial ASSEIS ........ccciiiiiiiiiiiieii e e 8 36.58 0.63
(C)  Other CUITENT ASSELS.....cccuiiiiiiiiiieeie ettt 9 437.71 415.43
SUB-TOTAL ...t 60,162.93 58,922.76
TOTAL ASSETS (1 + 2) 74,323.14 68,748.14
I EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 EQUITY
() Share Capital ......cceeeeieieiieee s 14 15,000.00 15,000.00
(L) IO g =T =L U PSPPSR 15 27,889.83 18,678.10
SUB-TOTAL ..ot 42,889.83 33,678.10
LIABILITIES
2  NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Financial Liabilities
(1) BOMTOWINGS. ...t 16 15,480.03 21,025.96
(i) Other Financial Liabilities ...........c.cooviiiiiiiiceeeeeeeee s 17 2.67 3.08
[(o) I o1 531 TSP 18 4,869.68 2,604.66
(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (NEt) .........ccoiiiiiiiiiieiiieesieee e 19 2,061.20 1,348.77
(d) Other Non-current Liabilities .........cccuoiiiiiiiiiiiiieceeee e 20 938.93 854.59
SUB-TOTAL ...t 23,352.51 25,837.06
3  CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Financial Liabilities
() BOITOWINGS. ...ttt ettt e et 16 50.07 393.06
(i) Trade Payables.........cccociiiiiiii s 21
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises........ 28.67 3.09
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
SMAll ENTEIPIISES ....eeieie e 1,243.86 1,166.32
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities... 17 4,077.19 4,804.40
(b)  Other Current Liabilities. ........c.cuiiiiiiiiiie e 20 1,586.70 1,208.72
(c) Provisions 18 1,094.31 1,657.39
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES ........ccccooviiniiiiine 8,080.80 9,232.98
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES (1 + 2 +3)............ 74,323.14 68,748.14
Summary of Significant Accounting POlICIES..........cccuecuiiiiiiiiiiei e 2
The accompanying notes 1 to 44 are an integral part of these financial statements
In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of Board of the Directors
For B.K. Khare & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration Number: 105102W . .
Arvind Subramanian Arun Nanda
Director Director
Himanshu Goradia DIN No.: 02551935 DIN No.: 00010029
Partner
Membership No.: 045668 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Mumbai Place: Jaipur Membership No.: 32339
Date: April 22, 2022 Date: April 22, 2022
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MAHINDRA WORLD CITY (JAIPUR) LIMITED
CIN NO. U45209RJ2005PLC021207

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31T MARCH, 2022

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars For the For the
Note No. Year ended Year ended

31st March, 2022 31 March, 2021

| Revenue from OpPerationS ...........ccueiiiiiiie it 22 29,103.34 11,074.33
| O 11 g =Tl [ o701 o 1Y 23 145.81 27.55
I Total INcome (I 4 1) coeeeeei e 29,249.15 11,101.88

IV EXPENSES
(@) Cost of Sales

=GOSt Of PrOJECES. ...eeiiiiiiie e 24 6,235.36 1,768.64
- Operation & Maintenance eXPeNSES.........ccovverreeiiieeenieniee e 25 1,708.15 1,554.95
(b) Employee benefits EXPENSE......c.eviiiiiiiiiiiiieiie s 26 386.98 359.00
() FINANCE COSLS ....veiiiiiiiieciee e 27 1,623.97 2,169.16
(d) Depreciation and amortisation expense 3&4 506.78 549.39
(€) OthEI EXPENSES ...vveieiiiiie et e ettt et e et e e e srrae e e entaeeeennnes 28 729.48 681.84
Total Expenses- (IV).........cccccviieeens 11,190.72 7,082.98
V  Profit before tax (lll - IV) 18,058.43 4,018.90
VI Tax Expense
(1) CUITENT 18Xttt 29 4,265.90 766.76
(2) Deferred tax.....coc it 29 89.62 11.28
Total tax eXPense- (VI).......cooiiiiiiieeie e 4,355.52 777.99
VII Profit after tax (V = VI) ... 13,702.91 3,240.91
VIII Other comprehensive inCOmMe/(I0SS) ...........cccceeiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 8.82 11.98
A (i) Iltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(@) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans .............cccceeennee. 12.44 16.90
(b) Income tax relating to item that will not be reclassified to
PrOfit OF 10SS ..iiiiiiiiiiie e (3.62) (4.92)
IX Total comprehensive income for the year (VII + VIII)............ccoooiiinnn. 13,711.73 3,252.89
Xl Earnings per share (Face Value of Rs. 10/- each)
(1) Basic/ Diluted Earnings per share (RS.).....cccccveriieiiieiiieiiie e 30 9.14 2.16
Summary of Significant Accounting POlICIES. .........coviiiiriiieiccecc s 2
The accompanying notes 1 to 44 are an integral part of these financial statements.
In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of Board of the Directors
For B.K. Khare & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration Number: 105102W
Arvind Subramanian Arun Nanda
Director Director
Himanshu Goradia DIN No.: 02551935 DIN No.: 00010029
Partner
Membership No.: 045668 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Mumbai Place: Jaipur Membership No.: 32339
Date: April 22, 2022 Date: April 22, 2022



MAHINDRA WORLD CITY (JAIPUR) LIMITED
CIN NO. U45209RJ2005PLC021207

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2022

Particulars

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before tax for the year

Non-cash adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows

Finance costs recognised in profit or loss

INterest INCOME........oooiiiiiiiii e
Liabilities written back ...........cccooeeiiiiiic
Investment income recognised in profit or loss
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Provision for Doubtful Debts..........c.ccccovviiiiiiiiiicninns

Depreciation and amortisation of non-current assets

Operating Profit before working capital changes

Movements in working capital:

Cash generated from operations

Income taxes (paid)/refund, net

Net cash generated from operating activities

Decrease/ (Increase) in trade and other receivables
Decrease in iNVeNtories. .......ccccvevvcieeeeeiiiee e
Decrease / (Increase) in other Non Current and current assets
Increase Financial Assets- Loans..........cccccevcveriincnne.
(Decrease)/ Increase in trade and other payables
Decrease in financial liabilities...........cccccceniiiniieen.
Increase/ (Decrease) in other liabilities........................

Increase in ProviSioNS .............eeuvvevvevvvevieiireeieeneneennnens

Cash flows from investing activities

Net cash generated from investing activities

10

Proceeds from sale of property plant and equipment
Capital expenditure .........ccoceeveieienie e
Net movement in Other Bank Balances......................

Interest & Investment Income received.......................

Rs. in Lakhs

For the year ended For the year ended

31st March, 2022

31t March, 2021

18,058.43 4,018.90
1,623.97 2,169.16
(103.32) (27.47)
(35.86) -
(6.63) -
- (0.08)

54.90 153.81
506.78 549.39
20,098.27 6,863.71
(343.69) 1,806.19
4,113.58 997.33
(20.61) 31.98
(1.79) (0.84)
103.12 (279.94)
1,345.58 (57.96)
399.87 41.74
1,750.24 332.01
27,444.57 9,734.22
(3,420.21) (899.57)
24,024.36 8,834.65
- 0.08
(67.99) (1.54)
(9,611.92) 1,343.93
67.37 54.50
(9,612.54) 1,396.97
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2022

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021

Cash flows from financing activities

Repayment of long term DOrOWINGS. .....c.ciiuiiiiieiiierie e (5,789.42) (3,000.00)

Net (Repayment)/ Proceeds from short term borrowings.........cc.ccecvecerieciecninne (280.54) (1,651.62)

Dividend Paid (including dividend distribution tax) .........cccccoveiiiiniiiniiinecnee (4,500.00) -

INtErest Paid.........ocoiii (5,050.43) (5,413.11)
Net cash used in financing activities................ccccoooi i, (15,620.39) (10,064.73)
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents................c.ccocceniiiniinnen. (1,208.57) 166.89

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year ..........ccccccoovnvinienennn. 1,347.50 1,180.61
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year.................ccooooiiiiiini 138.93 1,347.50
Components of cash and cash equivalents

(7= 1] o oo T o F= 1o To [ PSP 0.75 0.79

With banks

= ON CUIMENT ACCOUNT......oiiiiiiiiic e e s 138.18 246.71

- ON dEPOSIT ACCOUNT .....ceiiiiiii ittt - 1,100.00
Total cash and cash equivalents (Note 13) ... 138.93 1,347.50

% in Lakhs
Change in Liability arising from financing activities A B
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Non Current Borrowings (Refer Note 16 A) .....c.ooiiiiiiiiiiiieeeee e 15,480.03 21,025.96
Current Borrowings (Refer Note 16 B) ......cooiiiiiiiiiiiiieee e 50.07 393.06
TORAL ...t 15,530.10 21,419.02
Cash fIOWS (A = B) ...oooiiiiieie e et e et s (5,888.92)
EIR adjustment to the above ... (243.49)
Cash flows, net as per Financing Activities for the year ended 31 March, 2022.... (6,132.41)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Note 2).
The accompanying notes 1 to 44 are an integral part of these financial statements.

Notes:
The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect method” as set in ‘Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS) -
Statement of Cash Flows’.

In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of Board of the Directors

For B.K. Khare & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration Number: 105102W

Arvind Subramanian Arun Nanda
. . Director Director
Himanshu Goradia DIN No.: 02551935 DIN No.: 00010029
Partner
Membership No.: 045668 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Mumbai Place: Jaipur Membership No.: 32339
Date: April 22, 2022 Date: April 22, 2022

11



MAHINDRA WORLD CITY (JAIPUR) LIMITED

CIN NO. U45209RJ2005P

LC021207

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2022

A. Equity Share Capital

Balance as at - April 1, 2021

15,000.00.....c00cieueietiietc et

Balance as at - April 1, 2020

Changes in
Equity Share
Capital due to
prior period
errors

Restated
balance at the
beginning of the
current reporting
period

Changes in
equity share
capital during
the current year

Rs. in Lakhs

Balance as at -
March 31, 2022

15,000.00

Changes in
Equity Share
Capital due to
prior period

Restated
balance at the
beginning of the
current reporting

Changes in
equity share
capital during

Balance as at -

15,000.00.....0cceiiiii it -

B. Other Equity

Particulars
Balance as at - April 1, 2021
Profit for the year.....................

Other Comprehensive Income

net of taxes ........ccceeeeveviienne

Dividend paid on Equity Shares.............cccceeviviiiiininiiciie

Transfer from Debenture Rede

mption Reserve............cccc.....

Balance as at - March 31, 2022...............ccooiiiiiiincciece

Particulars
Balance as at - April 1, 2020
Profit for the year........cc.ccocee

Other Comprehensive Loss net of taxes........c.cccocevereeieennen.

Transfer from Debenture Redemption Reserve...........ccccceuee

Balance as at - March 31, 2021 ..............ocooiiiiiiiiiicee

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Note 2)

errors period the current year March 31, 2021
- - 15,000.00
Rs. in Lakhs
Other
Comprehensive
Reserves and Surplus Income
Debenture Capital
Redemption Redemption Retained Acturial
Reserve Reserve Earnings Gain / Loss Total
2,142.69 5,000.00 11,523.43 11.98 18,678.10
- - 13,702.91 13,702.91
- - 8.82 8.82
- - (4,500.00) (4,500.00)
(578.94) - 578.94 -
1,563.75 5,000.00 21,305.28 20.80 27,889.83
Rs. in Lakhs
Other
Comprehensive
Reserves and Surplus Income
Debenture Capital
Redemption Redemption Retained Acturial
Reserve Reserve Earnings Gain / Loss Total
2,442.69 5,000.00 7,982.52 15,425.21
- - 3,240.91 3,240.91
- - - 11.98 11.98
(300.00) - 300.00 - -
2,142.69 5,000.00 11,523.43 11.98 18,678.10

The accompanying notes 1 to 44 are an integral part of these financial statements.

In terms of our report attached

For B.K. Khare & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration Number: 105102W

Himanshu Goradia

Partner
Membership No.: 045668

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 22, 2022
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For and on behalf of Board of the Directors

Arvind Subramanian
Director

DIN No.: 02551935

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Jaipur
Date: April 22, 2022

Arun Nanda
Director

DIN No.: 00010029

Company Secretary
Membership No.: 32339



MAHINDRA WORLD CITY (JAIPUR) LIMITED
CIN NO. U45209RJ2005PLC021207

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2022

1. General Information

Mahindra World City (Jaipur) Limited (“the Company”) is engaged in the
business of development of an Industrial park with Special Economic Zone
(SEZ) and Domestic Tariff Area (DTA). The Company acquires land under
lease, incurs expenditure on its development and related infrastructure
facilities and gives them on a long-term lease for industrial, commercial
and residential use. The Company also maintains the Industrial Park for
which it collects operation and maintenance charges from the lessees.

The registered office of the Company is located at 4th Floor, 411, Neelkanth
Tower, Bhawani Singh Road, C-Scheme, Jaipur — 302001, Rajasthan.

2.  Significant Accounting Policies

2.1

2.2

23

Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared
in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as
per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021 as
amended and notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
(the Act) and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”). The aforesaid financial statements have been approved
by the Company’s Board of Directors and authorised for issue in the
meeting held on April 22, 2022.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost
basis except for certain financial instruments that are measured at
fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services.

Measurement of Fair Values

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Company considers the characteristics of the asset or liability if
market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and / or disclosure purposes in these financial
statements is determined on such a basis.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable.

2.3.1 Land Lease Premium

Land lease premium is recognized as income upon creation
of leasehold rights in favour of the lessee or upon an
agreement to create leasehold rights with handing over of
possession.

2.3.2 Income from properties

Income from properties and other assets given under operating
lease is recognised based on the terms of lease agreement on
a straight-line basis over the non-cancellable lease period.

2.4

2.5

2.3.3 Income from Operations and Maintenance (O&M)
Income from operation & maintenance charges and water
charges are recognized over time on an accrual basis as
per terms of the agreement with the lessees.

2.3.4 Other income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time proportionate
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at
the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Current versus non-current classification

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for
processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents.

Based on the nature of activity carried out by the Company and the
period between the procurement and realisation in cash and cash
equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12
months for the purpose of Current — Non Current classification of
assets & liabilities.

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet
based on current/ non-current classification.
An asset is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed
in normal operating cycle

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading
- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the
reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being
exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting
period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets
and liabilities.

Borrowings are classified as current if they are due to be settled
within 12 months after the reporting period.

Leases

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as
per the requirements of Ind AS 116. The Company uses significant
judgement in assessing the lease term (including anticipated
renewals) and the applicable discount rate.

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable
period of a lease, together with both periods covered by an option
to extend the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise
that option; and periods covered by an option to terminate the lease
if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. The
Company revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-
cancellable period of a lease.

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing
rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases
with similar characteristics.

13
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2.6

2.7

2,51 The Company as a Lessee

The Company has elected not to apply the requirements
of Ind AS 116 Leases to short-term leases of all assets that
have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases for which
the underlying asset is of low value. The lease payments
associated with these leases are recognized as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

2.5.2 Company as a lessor

At the inception of the lease the Company classifies each
of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.
The Company recognises lease payments received under
operating leases as income on a straight- line basis over the
lease term.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

2.6.1 Current tax

Current tax is determined as the amount of tax payable
in respect of taxable income for the year. The Company’s
current tax is calculated using tax rate that has been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

2.6.2 Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
way the Company expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

2.6.3 Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

2.8

2.9

2.10

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value. The
cost of construction material is determined on the basis of weighted
average method. Construction Work-in-Progress includes cost of
land, construction costs and allocated interest & manpower costs
and expenses incidental to the projects undertaken by the Company.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks.
Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original maturity
of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in the balance
sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Freehold land is not depreciated.

Properties used in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees and,
for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with
the Company’s accounting policy. Such properties are classified to
the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other
than freehold land and properties under construction) less their
residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-line method.

Depreciation on tangible fixed assets has been provided on pro-rata
basis, on the straight-line method as per the useful life prescribed in
Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 except for certain assets as
indicated below:

Certain plant and equipment are depreciated over a period of
12 years based on technical evaluation of useful life by management.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected
useful lives on the same basis as owned assets. However, when
there is no reasonable certainty that ownership will be obtained by
the end of the lease term, assets are depreciated over the shorter of
the lease term and their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment Property:

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation (including property under construction for
such purposes). Investment properties are measured initially at
cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
Investment properties are measured in accordance with requirement
of IND AS 16 for cost model.

Investment property includes leasehold land and building.
Depreciation on investment property has been provided on pro-
rata basis, on the straight-line method as per the useful life of such
property. Buildings are depreciated over the period of 60 years
considering this period as the useful life for the Company.
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2,12

2.13

2.14

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated at the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in profit or loss in the period in which the property is derecognised.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also, allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets
not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least annually,
and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows
have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit /
(loss) before extraordinary items and tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past
or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating,
investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based
on the available information.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

2.14.1 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is
the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount
is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of
the time value of money is material). When some or all of the
economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected
to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognised
as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received, and the amount of the receivable can be measured
reliably. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

215

2.16

2.14.2 Onerous contracts

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are
recognised and measured as provisions. An onerous contract
is considered to exist where the Company has a contract
under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations
under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to
be received from the contract.

2.14.3 Contingent liabilities

Contingent liability is disclosed in case of:

a. a present obligation arising from past events, when it is
not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and

b.  a present obligation arising from past events, when no
reliable estimate is possible.

2.14.4 Contingent assets

Contingent assets are disclosed where an inflow of economic
benefits is probable.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their
entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the
classification of the financial assets.

2.16.1 Classification of financial assets

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost (except for debt
instruments that are designated as at fair value through profit
or loss on initial recognition):

. the asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows; and

. the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (except for debt instruments that are
designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial
recognition):

. the asset is held within a business model whose

objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets; and

. the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

15
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2.16.2

2.16.3

2.16.4

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss for Fair Value
through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) debt
instruments. For the purposes of recognising foreign exchange
gains and losses, FVTOCI debt instruments are treated
as financial assets measured at amortised cost. Thus, the
exchange differences on the amortised cost are recognised in
profit or loss and other changes in the fair value of FVTOCI
financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of ‘Reserve for
debt instruments through other comprehensive income’. When
the investment is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in this reserve is reclassified to profit
or loss.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets classified as at
FVTPL. Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is
included in the “Other income” line item.

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI

On initial recognition, the Company can make an irrevocable
election (on an instrument by- instrument basis) to present
the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive
income pertaining to investments in equity instruments. This
election is not permitted if the equity investment is held for
trading. These elected investments are initially measured at fair
value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured
at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in
fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the ‘Reserve for equity instruments through
other comprehensive income’. The cumulative gain or loss is
not reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the investments.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
it in the near term; or

. on initial recognition, it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments

. that the Company manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short term

. profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument or

. a financial guarantee.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria
or FVTOCI criteria (see above) are measured at FVTPL. In
addition, debt instruments that meet the amortised cost criteria
or the FVTOCI criteria but are designated as at FVTPL are
measured at FVTPL.

A financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or
debt instruments that meet the FVTOCI criteria may be
designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such
designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement
or recognition inconsistency that would arise from measuring
assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on

2.16.5

them on different bases. The Company has not designated
any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising
on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend
or interest earned on the financial asset and is included in
the ‘Other income’ line item. Dividend on financial assets at
FVTPL is recognised when the Company’s right to receive
the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity,
the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of
the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured
reliably.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only
when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right
Offsetting Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and
only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable
right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them
on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. to set off the amounts and it intends either to
settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for
recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at
amortised cost, debt instruments at FVTOCI, lease receivables,
trade receivables, and other contractual rights to receive
cash or other financial asset, and financial guarantees not
designated as at FVTPL.

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit
losses with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects
to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original
effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest
rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets). The Company estimates cash flows by considering
all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example,
prepayment, extension, call and similar options) through the
expected life of that financial instrument.

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime expected
credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk
on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance
for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month
expected credit losses. 12-month expected credit losses are
portion of the life-time expected credit losses and represent
the lifetime cash shortfalls that will result if default occurs within
the 12 months after the reporting date and thus, are not cash
shortfalls that are predicted over the next 12 months.

If the Company measured loss allowance for a financial
instrument at lifetime expected credit loss model in the previous
period, but determines at the end of a reporting period that
the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial
recognition due to improvement in credit quality as compared
to the previous period, the Company again measures the loss
allowance based on 12-month expected credit losses.

When making the assessment of whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring
over the expected life of the financial instrument instead of
the change in the amount of expected credit losses. To make
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2.16.6

2.16.7

that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date
with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable
and supportable information, that is available without undue
cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit
risk since initial recognition.

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash
or another financial asset that result from transactions that
are within the scope of Ind AS 115, the Company always
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime
expected credit losses.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit
loss allowance for trade receivables, the Company has used
a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. This
expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a
provision matrix which takes into account historical credit loss
experience and adjusted for forward-looking information.

The impairment requirements for the recognition and
measurement of a loss allowance are equally applied to
debt instruments at FVTOCI except that the loss allowance is
recognised in other comprehensive income and is not reduced
from the carrying amount in the balance sheet.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.
If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control
the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it
may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised
in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety
(e.g. when the Company retains an option to repurchase part
of a transferred asset), the Company allocates the previous
carrying amount of the financial asset between the part it
continues to recognise under continuing involvement, and
the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative
fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The
difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part
that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration
received for the part no longer recognised and any cumulative
gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss if such
gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or
loss on disposal of that financial asset. A cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income
is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised
and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the
relative fair values of those parts.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

The fair value of financial assets denominated in a foreign
currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated
at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period.

2.16.8

2.16.9

. For foreign currency, denominated financial assets
measured at amortised cost and FVTPL, the exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss except for
those which are designated as hedging instruments in a
hedging relationship.

. Changes in the carrying amount of investments in equity
instruments at FVTOCI relating to changes in foreign
currency rates are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

. For the purposes of recognising foreign exchange
gains and losses, FVTOCI debt instruments are treated
as financial assets measured at amortised cost. Thus,
the exchange differences on the amortised cost are
recognised in profit or loss and other changes in the fair
value of FVTOCI financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

2.16.9.1 Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method or at FVTPL.

However, financial liabilities that arise when a
transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for
derecognition or when the continuing involvement
approach applies, financial guarantee contracts
issued by the Company, and commitments
issued by the Company to provide a loan at
below-market interest rate are measured in
accordance with the specific accounting policies
set out below.

2.16.9.2 Financial liabilities subsequently measured at
amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and
are not designated as at FVTPL are measured
at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. The carrying amounts of
financial liabilities that are subsequently measured
at amortised cost are determined based on the
effective interest method. Interest expense that
is not capitalised as part of costs of an asset is
included in the ‘Finance costs’ line item.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the
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2.18

2.19

effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial liability, or (where appropriate)
a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

2.16.9.3 Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Company’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
An exchange between with a lender of debt
instruments with substantially different terms is
accounted for as an extinguishment of the original
financial liability and the recogniton of a new
financial liability. Similarly, a substantial modification
of the terms of an existing financial liability (whether
or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the
debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of
the original financial liability and the recognition
of a new financial liability. The difference between
the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign currency transactions and translations

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at exchange rates
prevailing on the date of transaction. Monetary assets / liabilities are
translated at exchange rates prevailing on the date of settlement or
at the year-end as applicable, and gain / loss arising out of such
translation is adjusted to the profit and loss account.

Earnings per Share

Basic / Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit /
(loss) after tax (including the post-tax effect of extraordinary items, if
any) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year.

Employee benefits

Employee benefits include provident fund, superannuation fund,
employee state insurance scheme, gratuity fund, compensated
absences etc.

The Company’s contribution to provident fund are considered as
defined contribution plans and are charged as an expense as they
fall due based on the amount of contribution required to be made
and when services are rendered by the employees.

Defin
For defined benefit plans in the form of gratuity fund, the cost of
providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit
method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each Balance
Sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they occur.
Past service cost is recognized immediately to the extent that the
benefits are already vested and otherwise is amortized on a straight-
line basis over the average period until the benefits become vested.
The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the Balance Sheet
represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as
adjusted for unrecognized past service cost.

Short-term employee benefits

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected
to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees are
recognized during the year when the employees render the service.
These benefits include performance incentive and compensated
absences which are expected to occur within twelve months after the
end of the period in which the employee renders the related service.
The cost of such compensated absences is accounted as under:

nefit plan

2.20

2.21

2.22

a) in case of accumulated compensated absences, when
employees render the services that increase their entitlement
of future compensated absences; and

b) in case of non-accumulating compensated absences, when
the absences occur.

Long-term employee benefits

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within
twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee
renders the related service are recognized as a liability at the present
value of the defined benefit obligation as at the Balance Sheet date.

Insurance Claims:

Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted /
expected to be admitted and to the extent that the amount
recoverable can be measured reliably and it is reasonable to expect
ultimate collection.

Goods and Services tax input credit:

Goods and Services tax input credit is accounted for in the books in
the period in which the underlying service received is accounted and
when there is reasonable certainty in availing / utilising the credits.

Use of estimates and judgements

The Management is required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Management has made the following judgements based on estimates and
assumptions, which have the significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the financial statements:

A.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment
at the end of each reporting period. This re-assessment may result in
change in depreciation expense in future periods.

Actuarial Valuation

The determination of Group’s liability towards defined benefit
obligation to employees is made through independent actuarial
valuation including determination of amounts to be recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss and in other comprehensive income.
Such valuation depends upon assumptions determined after taking
into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors
such as supply and demand factors in the employment market.
Information about such valuation is provided in notes to the financial
statements.

COVID -19 Impact assessment:

The management assessed the Company’s future projections in light
of the developments due to COVID 19 situation and has reassessed
the impact that it may cause on the Company’s financial and
operational performance . The business activities were temporarily
suspended owing to lock down during the year and post phased out
lifting of the lock down, the activities have commenced in a gradual
manner . The Company has credit and term loan facilities available
to meet the project costs and pay off the vendors and bankers
in the immediate 12 months from the date of approval of these
financial statements. The Company expects no additional inflow of
capital towards currently planned development. Based on the above
assessment, the management is of the view that company will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return
to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance.
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Note No. 3 a. - Property, Plant and Equipment

As at As at
31t March, 31t March,
Carrying Amounts of: 2022 2021
Land - LeASE NOIG..........oiiii s 18.73 18.96
BUIGINGS ettt h sttt b bbbttt bbbttt 4,669.48 4,822.95
L F= Va1 G =T U o 4 T=T o USSR 569.72 756.66
OFfiCE EQUIPMENT ...ttt h bbbt b et b bbb bbbt b ettt 13.78 4.41
FUINITUIE N FIXTUIES ... s s - 2.63
A= aTTe] L= T T TP PP - -
(70 T40] o U1 (=T &= PP PP PPNt 0.33 0.56
TORAD ...t e bbbttt ettt b bbbttt 5,272.04 5,606.17
Description of Assets Land - Buildings Plant & Office Furniture Vehicles | Computers Total
Leasehold Equipment | Equipment | and Fixtures
I. Gross Carrying Amount
Balance as at 1 April 2021 20.55 5,974.88 2,903.02 49.44 1,490.45 29.87 64.58 10,532.79
Additions - - - 11.44 - - - 11.44
Disposals - - - - - - - -
Balance As at March 31, 2022 20.55 5,974.88 2,903.02 60.88 1,490.45 29.87 64.58 10,544.23
Il. Accumulated depreciation
and impairment
Balance as at 1 April 2021 1.59 1,151.93 2,146.36 45.03 1,487.82 29.87 64.02 4,926.62
Depreciation expense for the year 0.23 153.47 186.94 2.07 2.63 - 0.23 345.57
Disposals - - - - - - - -
Balance As at March 31, 2022 1.82 1,305.40 2,333.30 47.10 1,490.45 29.87 64.25 5,272.19
Ill. Net carrying amount as at 18.73 4,669.48 569.72 13.78 - - 0.33 5,272.04
March 31, 2022 (I-11)
Description of Assets Land - Buildings Plant & Office Furniture Vehicles | Computers Total
Leasehold Equipment | Equipment | and Fixtures
I.  Gross Carrying Amount
Balance as at 1st April, 2020 20.55 5,974.88 2,903.02 49.44 1,490.45 42.48 64.58 10,545.40
Additions - - - - - - - -
Disposals - - - - - 12.61 - 12.61
Balance as at 31 March 2021 20.55 5,974.88 2,903.02 49.44 1,490.45 29.87 64.58 10,532.79
Il.  Accumulated depreciation and
impairment
Balance as at 1st April 2020 1.36 995.81 1,938.53 42.02 1,481.48 42.48 63.17 4,564.85
Depreciation expense for the year 0.23 156.12 207.83 3.01 6.34 - 0.85 374.38
Disposals - - - - - 12.61 - 12.61
Balance as at 31 March 2021 1.59 1,151.93 2,146.36 45.03 1,487.82 29.87 64.02 4,926.62
Ill. Net carrying amount as at 18.96 4,822.95 756.66 4.41 2.63 - 0.56 5,606.17
31 March 2021 (I-l)

Note:

The depreciation methods used and the useful lives or the depreciation rates used are as per the Accounting policy. Refer notes 1 and 2.
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Note No. 4 - Capital-Work-in Progress

(a)

CWIP aging schedule

Rs. In Lakhs
As at March 31, 2022 Amount in CWIP for a period of
CWIP Less than More than
1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3 years Total
Projects in ProgreSs ..ot 56.55 16.87 109.76 - 183.18
Projects temporarily suspended * ...........cc.cccieiiiiiiinin - - - 23.92 23.92
Total 56.55 16.87 109.76 23.92 207.10
Rs. In Lakhs
As at March 31, 2021 Amount in CWIP for a period of
CWIP Less than More than 3
1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years years Total
Projects in ProgreSs ..ottt - 16.87 109.76 - 126.63
Projects temporarily suspended * ... - - 23.92 23.92
Total - 16.87 109.76 23.92 150.55
* The amount of Projects temporarily suspended has been provided for in the books in financial year 2020-21.
(b) There is no capital-work-in progress, whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan.
Note No. 5 - Investment Property Description of Assets Land Buildings Total
As at As at Balance as at 1 April 2020 49.96 1,966.35 2,016.31
31 March, 31 March, Addition 3.68 171.33 175.01
Carrying Amounts of: 2022 2021
Balance As at
i March 31, 2021 53.64 2,137.68 2,191.32
Completed Investment Properties
(Net Value) ............cccoveeveeveereiereeeenas 8,069.85 8,231.06 Ill. Net carrying amount as
at 31 March 2021 (I-11) 316.40 7,914.66 8,231.06
Description of Assets Land Buildings Total Fair value disclosure on Company’s investment properties
. Gross Carrying Amount (i) The Company’s investment properties consist of land and building
- with current rentable area of 4.30 Lakhs sqg. ft. Management
Balance as at 1 April 2021 370.04| 10,052.34| 10,422.38 determined that the investment properties consist of two classes of
Addition - _ - assets — Land and Building — based on the nature, characteristics
and risks of each property.
Balance As at . .
March 31, 2022 370.04 10,052.34 10,422.38 (i) As at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, the fair values of the
properties are Rs. 18,027.64 Lakhs and Rs. 16,128.11 Lakhs
Il. Accumulated respectively (Level 3). These valuations are based on valuations
fieprgmatmn and performed by Purshotam Khandelwal who is registered with an
impairment authority which governs the valuers in India and has appropriate
Balance as at 1 April 2021 53.64 2,137.68 2,191.32 qualification and experience in the valuation of properties.
Addition 3.68 157.53 161.21 (iii) The Company has no restrictions on the realisability of its investment
properties and no contractual obligations to either purchase, construct
Balance As at or develop investment properties or for repairs, maintenance and
March 31, 2022 57.32 2,295.21 2,352.53 enhancements.
1. Net carrying amount as Description of valuation techniques used and key inputs to valuation
at 31 March 2022 (I-1I) 312.72 7,757.13 8,069.85 on investment properties:
Description of Assets Land Buildings Total Valuation technique- Income Approach Method
I. Gross Carrying Amount Range (weighted average)
; Significant unobservable Inputs As at As at
Balance as at 1 April 2020 370.04 10,052.34 10,422.38 31% March, 31% March,
Addition - - - 2022 2021
Balance As at Annual Rental.........cccoevviviiiiiiiiiciiees 1,621.91 1,506.66
March 31, 2021 370.04| 10,052.34 | 10,422.38 Less: Repairs & Maintenance & Mgmt
II. Accumulated Exp, Insurace Etc.15% .... 243.29 253.00
fiepr(_eciation and Net Annual Rental 1,378.62 1,253.66
impairment Capitalized Net Yield ........ccoc.ccoovvrrreeene. 10.00% 10.00%
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Note

Note

Note

Range (weighted average)

Significant unobservable Inputs As at As at
31% March, 31 March,
2022 2021
Net Annual Income 13,786.24 12,536.60
Total Built Up area (Sq Ft area). 430,672 430,672
Rented Built Up Area 362,262 362,262
Area under Possession MWCJ ............. 68,410 68,410
Market Rate /Sq ft Rs. 6,200 yr
2020-21 Rs. 5,780 Yr 2020-21........c.c.... 4,241.40 3,591.51
Total Market Value 18,027.64 16,128.11
Realisable Value............cccoocvvvviiniinnnnn, 13,520.73 12,368.01
Realisable Value (in CR)........c.ccccoevins 135.21 123.68
Distress Sale Value 9,013.82 8,245.34
Distress Sale Value (In CR).. 90.14 82.45

Basis of Valuation Method:- Valuation is carried out by income approach
method (also called Yield Method) is adopted in which appropriate rate of
return is capitalised to reach the market value of the property of the portion
rent out and sales comparable method use for the portion under owner

Possession.

The depreciation methods used and the useful lives or the depreciation
rates used are as per the Accounting policy. Refer notes 1 and 2.

No. 6 - Intangible Assets
As at
31t March,
Carrying Amounts of: 2022

As at
31t March,
2021

Other Intangible Assets ..................... -

No. 7- Security Deposits

Particulars

Security Deposits

- Unsecured, considered good

No. 8 - Other Financial Assets

Particulars

Financial assets at amortised cost

a) Interest Accrued on depoSitS.........ccvrerererenenenenenenns

b) Fixed Deposits

Note No. 9 - Other Non - Current Assets

Particulars

(a) Capital advances

(i) For Capital work in progress .........cccceererereneneennns

Computer Total

Description of Assets Software
I. Gross Carrying Amount
Balance as at 1 April 2021 52.03 52.03
Balance As at March 31, 2022 52.03 52.03
Il. Accumulated depreciation and

impairment
Balance as at 1 April 2021 52.03 52.03
Balance As at March 31, 2022 52.03 52.03
1Il. Net carrying amount as at - -

31 March 2022 (I-1l)

Computer Total

Description of Assets Software
Intangible Assets
I. Gross Carrying Amount
Balance as at 1 April 2020 52.03 52.03
Balance as at 31 March, 2021 52.03 52.03
Il. Accumulated depreciation and

impairment
Balance as at 1 April 2020 52.03 52.03
Balance as at 31 March, 2021 52.03 52.03
Ill. Net carrying amount as at - -

31 March, 2021 (I-1l)

Note: The depreciation methods used and the useful lives or the depreciation
rates used are as per the Accounting policy. Refer notes 1 and 2.

As at 31t March, 2022

As at 31¢t March, 2021

Current Non- Current

Current Non- Current

- 118.69

- 116.90

- 118.69

- 116.90

As at 31°' March, 2022

As at 315 March, 2021

Current Non-Current Current Non-Current
36.58 - 0.63 -
36.58 - 0.63 -

As at 31t March, 2022

As at 31t March, 2021

Current Non-Current

Current Non-Current
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Particulars

(a) Advances other than capital advances

(i) Balances with government authorities (other than income taxes) ..

(i) Income Tax Assets (Net of provision of Rs. 13,183.86 Lakhs- FY 22:

Rs. 9,537.15 Lakhs- FY21)

(iii) Taxes paid under Protest (Refer note 32) ..........ccccooeiiiiiiiciciens
(iv) Prepaid EXPENSES .......cccoviiiirieiieiesie e
(V) AdVaNCe 10 VENAOIS ........cociiviriiiiiiiiie e

(Vi) OTNEIS™ ..o

* Others mainly includes recoverable from vendors and unbilled revenue.

Note No. 10 - Inventories

Particulars

Inventories (Work-in-progress)

Total Inventories

Included in above:

LN COSE ..ttt

DeVveloPMENt COSt......cviiiiiiiiie i

As at 31t March, 2022 As at 31¢ March, 2021
Current Non-Current Current Non-Current
110.38 82.91 95.65 82.91
_ — 226.50
- 406.88 - 406.88
72.28 2.74 42.21 4.41
254.43 - 258.98 -
0.62 - 18.59 -
437.71 492.53 415.43 720.70
As at As at
31t March, 31t March,
2022 2021
........................................................... 48,393.01 50,909.84
........................................................... 48,393.01 50,909.84
........................................................... 17,817.81 19,377.24
........................................................... 30,575.20 31,532.60
........................................................... 48,393.01 50,909.84

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the year was Rs. 6,235.36 Lakhs (FY 2020-21: Rs. 1,768.64 Lakhs).

TOAL ..o s

@

(i)  The carrying amount of inventories is pledged as security for liabilities. Refer Note No. 16 - Borrowings.
(i) Mode of valuation of inventories is cost or net realisable value, whichever is less. Refer note 2.8.

Note No. 11 - Investments

22

Current

Particulars As at As at

31t March, 2022 31 March, 2021

I. Unquoted Investments

Investments in Mutual Funds...... 4,706.63 -
Total Unquoted Investments........ 4,706.63 -
Investments Carried At FVTPL 4,706.63 -

Other disclosures:

Aggregate amount of Market
value of investments.................... 4,706.63 -

Refer Note 37 for disclosure of Measurement Requirements as per IND
AS 107, 109, 113.

Note No. 12 - Trade Receivables

Rs. in Lakhs

Current

Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2022 31t March, 2021

Trade receivables

(a) Trade Receivables considered

good- Unsecured...........c..ccceeee 1,023.40 734.61
(b) Trade Receivables — credit

impaired. ... 172.85 153.81
Less: Allowance for credit losses (172.85) (153.81)
TOTAL ..ot 1,023.40 734.61
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Note

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

As at 31t March, 2022

As at 31 March, 2021

Undisputed Trade Undisputed Trade
receivables -
considered good

Receivables -
credit impaired

Undisputed Trade

receivables —

considered good

Undisputed Trade

Receivables —
credit impaired

()  Trade receivables are dues in respect of services rendered in the normal course of business.

(i)  The average credit period in the range of 7-60 days on service rendered is as per the terms of the service agreement with clients.

No. 13 - Cash and Bank Balances

Particulars

Cash and cash equivalents
(a) Balances with banks ...........c.cccue..
(b) Cash on hand.........cc.ccoevnvrininnnnnn.

(c) Fixed Deposits with original
maturity less than 3 months ..........

Total Cash and cash equivalents
(considered in Cash Flow
Statement)............cccooeeieiiniiice,

Other Bank Balances

(a) Earmarked balances with banks
(Refer note No. 13 a. below) .........

(b) Balances with Banks:

(i) Fixed Deposits.........ccccurvrirenns

Total Other Bank balances ................

Grand Total ...

Note No. 13 a. Fixed deposit is earmarked for availing overdraft facility of
Rs. 9.00 Lakhs with State Bank of India. The overdraft facility is unutilised
as on March 31, 2022 (Previous year- Nil).

As at As at
31st March, 31t March,
2021 2020
138.18 246.71
0.75 0.79

- 1,100.00

138.93 1,347.50
15.45 14.75
5,411.22 500.00
5,426.67 514.75
5,565.60 1,862.25

681.16 - 364.29 -
110.73 - 84.62 0.28
117.54 17.69 172.20 21.14
109.92 4.79 103.44 4.50
3.97 150.37 10.05 127.88
1,023.32 172.85 734.61 153.81
Note No. 14 - Share Capital
Particulars As at As at
31st March, 31st March,
2021 2020
Authorised Share Capital:
150,000,000 fully paid equity shares of
Rs 10 €aCh.....ccceiiciiiiiiciccics 15,000.00 15,000.00
50,000,000 Preference shares of
Rs 10 €acCh ... 5,000.00 5,000.00
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid:
150,000,000 Equity shares of
10 @aCh......iccc 15,000.00 15,000.00
TOtAl ... 15,000.00 15,000.00

(@) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares:

(i) The Company has only one class of Equity shares having
a par value of Rs 10/- per share. Each holder of Equity
Shares is entitled to one vote per share and carry right to

dividends.

(i) The company declares and pays dividends in Indian
rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors
is subject to the approval of the shareholders in ensuing

Annual General Meeting.

(iii) Repayment of capital will be in proportion to the number of

equity shares held.
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(b) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year.

Particulars Opening Balance Other Changes Closing Balance

Equity Shares with Voting rights*
Year Ended 31 March 2022
NO. Of SNAIES......eiiiii e 150,000,000 - 150,000,000
AMOUNT. ..o 15,000 - 15,000
Year Ended 31 March 2021
NO. Of SNAIES......ciiiiitiiite e 150,000,000 - 150,000,000
AMOUNT. ..o 15,000 - 15,000

- There were no Preference shares issued during the year or outstanding as on 31 March 2022 and 2021.

(c) Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:

Class of shares/Name of shareholder As at 315 March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021
Number of % holding Number of % holding
shares held in that class shares held in that class
of shares of shares

Equity shares with voting rights
- Mahindra Lifespace Developers LIMIted ..........cccreeeernreerncennccsnceeeeceerees 111,000,000 74% 111,000,000 74%

- Rajasthan State Industrial Development and Investment Corporation Limited.......... 39,000,000 26% 39,000,000 26%

(d) Details of shares held by promoters:

% Change during
Class of shares/ Name of Promoters Number of shares % of Total Shares the year

As at March 31, 2022

Equity shares with voting rights

— Mahindra Lifespace Developers Limited 111,000,000 74% 0%
— Rajasthan State Industrial Development and Investment Corporation Limited...... 39,000,000 26% 0%
As at March 31, 2021
Equity shares with voting rights
— Mahindra Lifespace Developers LImited ............ccoeoeiiiieiiiiiiiiiicceeeesesesesee 111,000,000 74% 0%
- Rajasthan State Industrial Development and Investment Corporation Limited...... 39,000,000 26% 0%
Note No. 15 (a) - Other Equity
Particulars As at As at
31t March, 31t March,
2022 2021
[ TC =1 gTCTe BT ol o o UV 21,326.08 11,535.41
Capital redEMPLION MESEIVE ...ttt b et bbbt b et e bbbt e e 5,000.00 5,000.00
Debenture redemplion FESEIVE ..o s 1,563.75 2,142.69
TOAL ... bbb 27,889.83 18,678.10
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Note

Note

No. 15 (b) - Other Equity

Capital Debenture
Redemption Redemption Retained
Particulars Reserve Reserve Earnings Total
As at 1 April, 2021 ... 5,000.00 2,142.69 11,5635.41 18,678.10
Profit for the YEar ..o - - 13,702.91 13,702.91
Other Comprehensive Income (net of taxes) .........ccccoevveieieicienne - - 8.82 8.82
Total Comprehensive Income for the year ..o 5,000.00 2,142.69 25,247.14 32,389.83
Dividend paid on Equity Shares ........c.ccocovoerenenenenenenese s - - (4,500.00) (4,500.00)
Transfers from Debenture Redemption Reserve - (578.94) 578.94 -
As at March 31, 2022 ..............cccceoiiiiiii e 5,000.00 1,563.75 21,326.08 27,889.83
Capital Debenture
Redemption Redemption Retained
Particulars Reserve Reserve Earnings Total
As at 1 April, 2020 ..........cocccoiiiiiii e 5,000.00 2,442.69 7,982.52 15,425.21
Profit for the YEar ..o - - 3,240.91 3,240.91
Other Comprehensive Loss (net of taxes) ..........ccccocevviiiiiiicicne - - 11.98 11.98
Total Comprehensive Income for the year ... 5,000.00 2,442.69 11,235.41 18,678.10
Transfers from Debenture Redemption Reserve ..........cccoceveeiieenes - (300.00) 300.00 -
As at March 31, 20271 ... 5,000.00 2,142.69 11,5635.41 18,678.10

Capital Redemption Reserve: The Capital Redemption Reserve was created against redemption of Preference Shares.

Debenture Redemption Reserve: A debenture redemption reserve is a provision created against issue of debentures to protect investors against the possibility
of default by the company.

Pursuant to Rule 18 (7) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 (amended vide notification dated 16th August, 2019), an amount of
Rs. 578.94 Lakhs (PY - Rs. 300 Lakhs) being the excess DRR in the books of accounts have been transferred to Retained Earnings.

Retained Earnings: This reserve represents cumulative profits of the Company and effects of remeasurement of defined benefit obligations. This reserve can
be utilised in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013.

No. 16 - Borrowings

As at As at

31t March, 31st March,
Particulars 2022 2021
A. Non- Current Borrowings
Measured at amortised cost
Unsecured Borrowings:
- Other Loans- Refer note 16 A-l ... 15,480.03 21,025.96
Total UnSecured BOITOWINGS ............cooiiiiiie ettt r e e e resne e e 15,480.03 21,025.96
Total Non- CUrrent BOITOWINGS .............ociiiiiiiiiiiieie ettt ettt e et b et e b e b e r e resresrennennas 15,480.03 21,025.96
B. Short Term Borrowings
Secured Borrowings
Loans repayable on demand
= FTOIM BANKS ...t 50.07 393.06
Total Secured Short TErM BOITOWINGS ..........coiiuiiiiiiiiiei ettt b et b e bt bt bt b et e sbesbesbe bbb e 50.07 393.06
Total Short TErM BOITOWINGS. .........ccuiuiiiiiiiieiie ettt ettt b bbbt sn b 50.07 393.06
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Summary of Borrowing Arrangements: Non- Current Borrowings Oustanding Summary
Note - 16 A - |. The Company has issued, on 5th July’ 2018 - unsecured, Particulars As at As at
unlisted, redeemable, non-convertible debentures as below:- 315t March, 315t March,
2022 2021
Particulars Series 1A| Series 1B| Series B Total
Face Value (Rs.) 100.00 100.00 100.00 Non- Convertible Debentures- IFC
Refer Note - 14 A- 1l ..ccvvveeeiiiiee, 15,480.03 21,025.96
No. of
Debentures 6,622,870 | 12,856,160| 1,947,903 | 21,426,933 Total ..o 15,480.03 21,025.96

Total Face Value . - S .
(Value in Lakhs) 6,622.87| 12,856.16| 1,947.90| 21,426.93 Note - 16 B. The cash credit facility carries interest rate in the range
of 7.70% p.a. t0 9.20% p.a. and is secured against trade receivables.

Discount on ) s
issue 10% 10% Nil Nil Note No. 17 - Other Financial Liabilities

Particulars As at As at
Total Issue
Value (Value in 31st March, 31st March,
Lakhs) 5,960.50| 11,570.54| 1,947.90| 19,479.03 2022 2021
The key terms series 1A are as below: Other Financial Liabilities Measured at

Amortised Cost
(@ Coupon on each Series 1A Debenture shall accrue on a quarterly

basis at the end of each quarter of a Financial Year, and shall Non-Current

become due and payable to the holders of Series 1A Debentures . .

quarterly subject to availability of Distributable Cash as determined (@) Security DEpOSItS.......ccvivrsvsississis 2.67 3.08
by Distribution committee. The Company shall redeem the
relevant Series 1A Debentures in the in accordance with the

Total Non Current Other financial liabilities

Distribution Waterfall and Distribution Waterfall Mechanism. measured at amortised COSt ... 2.67 3.08
The key terms series 1B are as below: Current
(@)  Coupon on each Series 1B Debenture shall accrue on a quarterly a) Interest Accrued but not due
basis at the end of each quarter of a Financial Year, and shall (NOtE = 16 A- 1) oo, 1,381.09 3,454.29
become due and payable to the holders of Series 1B Debentures
quarterly subject to availability of Distributable Cash as determined b) Other liabilities
by Distribution committee. The Company shall redeem the
relevant Series 1B Debentures in the in accordance with the (1) Capital Creditors.........ccovueeerrieerirenenns 46.04 46.04
Distribution Waterfall and Distribution Waterfall Mechanism.
i (2) Security Deposits from lessees........... 2,614.29 1,267.91
The key terms series B are as below:
(@) Coupon on each Series B Debenture shall accrue on a quarterly (3) OHhers.......cooomrvveeicirnmniissseiiens 35.77 36.16
basis at the end of each quarter of a Financial Year, and shall
become due and payable to the holders of Series B Debentures Total Current Other financial liabilities
quarterly subject to availability of Distributable Cash as determined measured at amortised cost ................... 4,077.19 4,804.40
by Distribution committee. The Company shall redeem the
relevant Series B Debentures in the in accordance with the Total other financial liabilities .................. 4,079.86 4,807.48
Distribution Waterfall and Distribution Waterfall Mechanism.
Note No. 18 - Provisions
Particulars As at 31¢t March, 2022 As at 31t March, 2021
Current Non-Current Current Non-Current
(a) Provision for employee benefits
© GIALUIY et 1.10 60.00 1.22 66.54
- Leave encashmMent ..ot 0.74 27.21 1.17 42.91
(b) Other Provisions
(1) Provision for cost of Sale ..........cccviiiiiiiiiiici 1,092.47 4,782.47 1,655.00 2,495.21
Total ProviSioNns...........c.cccciiiiiiiiiii 1,094.31 4,869.68 1,657.39 2,604.66

Note- 18 a. The Other Provisions are not subject to discounting, considering no fixed timeline to incur cash outflow.
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Note No. 19: Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
For the year ended March 31, 2021

Particulars As at As at
31t March, 31t March, . ) )
2022 2021 Particulars Opening Closing
Balance For the year Balance
Deferred Tax Liabilities...........ccccccovvennen. 2,104.33 2,052.04
Tax effect of items
Deferred Tax Assets..........ccccoevvviininnnn. (43.13) (703.27) constituting deferred tax
Total ..o 2,061.20 1,348.77 liabilities
Property, Plant and
(i) Movement in deferred tax balances Equipment.........cccoeeene 1,993.04 59.00 2,052.04
For the Year ended 31t March, 2022 Others.....cccceevveceinnicene, 1.30 (1.30) -
Particulars Opening Closing ) 1.994.34 57.70 2,052.04
Balance For the year Balance
Tax effect of items constituting Tax effect of items
deferred tax liabilities constituting deferred tax_
assets
Property, Plant and
Equipment...........cccocoee. 2,052.04 52.29 2,104.33 Provisions for Leave
Others ......cccoevvievrirennnns - - - Encashment & Grautuity . 42.51 (9.94) 32.57
(A) 2,052.04 52.29 2,104.33 Provision for Doubtful
- 44.79 44.79
Tax effect of items constituting
deferred tax assets Minimum Alternate
= Credit Entitlement........... 649.56 (30.37) 619.19
Provisions for Leave
Encashment & Gratuity .. 32.57 (6.:64) 25.93 Other Items..........ccco..... 0.02 6.70 6.72
Provision for Doubtful
Debts......ccooviiiiiee, 44.79 (28.80) 15.99 B) 692.09 11.18 703.27
Minimum Alternate
Credit Entitlement........... 619.19 (619.19) - Net Tax Liabilities........ (A-B) 1,302.25 46.52 1,348.77

Other Items 6.72 (5.51) 1.21

* Deferred tax (Charge) / Credit recognised in Other comprehensive
B) 703.27 (660.14) 43.13 income on Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans is Rs -3.62 Lakhs
(Previous Year-Rs 4.92 Lakhs).

Net Tax Liabilities..... (A - B) 1,348.77 712.43 2,061.20

Note No. 20 - Other Liabilities

Particulars As at 31t March, 2022 As at 315 March, 2021
Current Non-Current Current Non-Current
a. Advances received from CUSIOMErS ...........ccooiiiiiiiieie e 1,174.43 - 1,174.43 -

b. Statutory dues

- taxes payable (other than income taxes)..........ccceviiiiiiiiciiiciiiinis 37.64 - 23.99 -
- Income Tax Liability........cccooooviiiiiiiiiiiccs 363.20
€. ONEIS .. 11.43 938.93 10.30 854.59
TOTAL OTHER LIABILITIES ..ottt 1,586.70 938.93 1,208.72 854.59

* Others represent the rent free deposits received from customers.
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Note No. 21 - Trade Payables 22. (a) During the year, the company has leased 94.96 (previous year 28.78)
acres of land on long term basis. Of this 12.39 (previous year 11.56) acres
Particulars As at As at in Special Economic Zone (SEZ) and 82.57 (previous year 17.22) acres is in
31 March, 31st March, the Non Special economic Zone (Non SEZ).
2022 2022

22. (b) Others represent transfer fee towards transfer of plot by clients.
Trade payable - Micro and small

enterprises - Refer Note no.- 33 ......... 28.67 3.09 Note No. 23 - Other Income

Trade payable - Other than micro and .

) Particulars For the For the
small enterprises 1,243.86 1,166.32 year ended year ended
31t March, 31t March,

Total trade payables .......................... 1,272.53 1,169.41 2022 2021

As at March 31, 2022 (@) Interest Income

Outstanding for following MSME Others Disputed Disputed (1) Interest on Bank Deposits ...... 103.32 27.47

periods dues - dues -

MSME Others (b) Net gain/(loss) arising on financial
assets designated as at FVTPL.... 6.63 -

Less than 1 year................. 28.67 728.09 - -

1-2years.....cccvveeiiniiiinnnnns - 5.86 - - (c) Miscellaneous Income *................ 35.86 0.08

2-3 years ......cccceeiiiiiiinnn, - 40.34 - -

Total Other Income..................cccees 145.81 27.55

More than 3 years .............. - 448.38 - -

Total oo 28.67 1,222.67 - - * Miscellaneous income represents provision for bad and doubtful debts
written back for year ended March 31, 2022 and profit on sale of property,
plant and equipment for the year ended March 31, 2021 respectively.

As at March 31, 2021

Outstanding for following MSME Others Disputed Disputed Note No. 24 - Cost of Projects

periods dues — dues - .

MSME Others Particulars For the For the
year ended year ended

Less than 1 year............... 275  587.94 - - 31 March, 31¢ March,

2022 2021

1-2 years ....ccoceevcveeiiiennen 0.34 47.06 - -

23 YBAIS woovvrreerereeeeeerreeeiens _ 85.41 _ _ Cost of Projects:

More than 3 years .............. - 445.91 - - Opening Stock:

Total .......coovvviiicie 3.09 1,166.32 - - Work-in-progress ..........cccocevnennnae 50,909.84 50,012.26

- Trade Payables are payables in respect of the amount due on Sub-Total (a) .........ccoooocirirvririrenes 50,909.84 50,012.26

account of goods purchased or services received in the normal
course of business.

- The average credit period in the range of 0-60 days on goods/service Add: Expenses incurred during

received is as per the terms of the agreement with vendors. the year

- The above ir'n‘ormation regarding Micro 'and Small Entgrpri;gs has Civil, Electrical, Contracting etc. .... 1,929.47 541.01

been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on
the basis of information available with the Company. Finance CoSts.......ccccccvveirnennnnn. 1,596.75 1,894.91

Note No. 22 - Revenue from Operations

Overheads allocated * .................. 192.31 230.30

Particulars For the For the
year ended year ended Sub-Total (b) ........c.cccovririrririnns 3,718.53 2,666.22

31t March, 31t March,

2022 2021

Less: Closing Stock:

Revenue from rendering of services:

() Land Lease Premium ................ 25,057.83 6.957.11 Work in progress.........cccoceevvennnene 48,393.01 50,909.84

(i) Property Rentals- eVolve............... 1,616.93 1,626.88 Sub-Total (C) ....cvveereererrerererenen. 48,393.01 50,909.84

(iii) Income from Operation and

Maintenance .........c..cccveviiniicnnne, 2,366.25 2,369.07 Total (@a+b-C).......ccoccvviiiiiiins 6,235.36 1,768.64

(V) OthErS ...eveeeeereeveeveeee e 62.33 121.27

* Overheads represent manpower and admin expenses inventorised.
Total Revenue from Operations........ 29,103.34 11,074.33
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Note No. 25 - Operation & Maintenance expenses

Note

Note

Particulars

(a) Site Electricity & Diesel Expenses........
(b) Repairs & Maintenance Expenses........
(c) Security Charges..........ccoovvvvrerenenennens
(d) Landscaping/ Water Charges................
(e) Cleaning/ Housekeeping Charges........
(f) Organization EXpPenses ..........c.cccoeuenne
(9) Insurance EXpenses.........c.ccooveviininnens
(h) Legal & Professional Fees ....................
(i) Rates & TaxeS.......cccoovivrivrierenenenennens

() Other Miscellaneous Expenses ............

Total Operation and Maintenance
EXPENSE.......cooviiiiiiiiiin e

No. 26 - Employee Benefits Expense

Particulars

(@) Salaries and wages, including bonus*..

(b) Contribution to provident and other
FUNAS .

(c) Staff welfare expenses ..........c..ccocervenne.
Total Employee Benefits Expense ..........
Less : Allocated to projects..................

Total Net Employee Benefits Expense...

For the For the
year ended  year ended
31t March, 31st March,

2022 2021

165.08 165.07

346.52 262.39

223.44 198.33

526.17 503.39

336.33 312.91

68.87 60.38
19.89 29.21
0.31 0.01
1.16 6.18
20.38 17.08
1,708.15 1,554.95

For the For the
year ended  year ended
31t March, 31t March,

2022 2021
530.32 542.80
39.36 41.41
9.54 1.95

579.22 586.16

(192.24) (227.16)

386.98 359.00

* Includes cost for Employee Stock Options of Mahindra Lifespaces
Developers Limited issued to employees of the Company aggregating to
Rs. 13.86 Lakhs (Previous Years-Rs. 3.52 Lakhs).

No. 27 - Finance Costs

Particulars

(@) Interest eXpense .........ccvvvereeieniieninnnnns

(b) Other borrowing COStS ........ccceervvreenns

(c) Other interest costs....
Total finance costs..............cccoeiiiiinnn,
Less : Allocated to projects..................

Total finance costs

For the For the
year ended  year ended
31t March, 31t March,

2022 2021
3,180.87 3,900.66
0.89 1.59
38.96 161.82
3,220.72 4,064.07
(1,596.75) (1,894.91)
1,623.97 2,169.16

Note

Note

27 a. The interest is inventorised on borrowings referred to in Note- 16- A I.
and in the ratio of undeveloped inventory to the total inventory.
27 b. Borrowing cost allocated to projects refers to interest on borrowings

in note - 16- A -I.

27 c. The Other interest cost includes reversal of interest on cash credit
Limit utilisation of Rs. -0.75 Lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Previous year expense- Rs. 157.63 Lakhs).

No. 28 - Other Expenses

Particulars

(@) Rent including lease rentals

(b) Rates and taxes.........ccccovvrvrvnenenennens
(C) INSUrANCE .....eoveeeiieiiesieeee e
(d) Repairs and Maintenance- Others........
(e) Power and Fuel .........cc.ccoovvvniiciiinnnens
(f) Travelling & Conveyance ............cc.ccou...
(9) Legal & Professional Fees....................
(h

Printing & Stationery ...........ccccoeevnenne
(i) Communication ..........c.ccoevrvrerenienennens

() Advertisement, Marketing & Business
Development........cccooeiieiieiieiiiiiiecns

(k) Auditors Remuneration
(refer note No. 28 (@)).......ccoevvvvviciennn.

() Expenditure on Corporate Social
Responsibility (refer note no. 28 (b)) ...

(m) Provision for Doubtful Debts
(n) Development Management Fees..........

(0) Miscellaneous Expenses...........cccoceenee.
Total Gross Other Expenses.....................
Less : Allocated to projects/Capitalised....

Total Net Other Expenses..............c.........

No. 28 (a) - Auditors Remuneration

Particulars

Payments to the auditors comprises:
- For audit including limited reviews..........

- Certifications ........coovvvieninini

For the For the
year ended  year ended
31t March,  31% March,

2022 2021
10.72 11.55
2.84 2.91
24.16 20.02
23.44 21.44
8.89 11.63
23.44 2.85
39.26 46.36
3.64 2.07
6.44 7.27
283.05 160.47
17.93 17.93
85.02 86.02
54.90 153.81
116.52 65.79
29.30 74.86
729.55 684.98
(0.07) (3.14)

729.48 681.84

For the For the
year ended  year ended
31t March, 31t March,

2022 2021
15.05 15.05
2.80 2.80
0.08 0.08
17.93 17.93
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Note No. 28.b - CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

Group CSR

Nature of CSR activities Education Health Environment Activities Others Total
Amount required to be spent by the Company during

14.00 8.56 8.46 25.00 29.00 85.02

14.00 8.56 8.46 25.00 29.00 85.02
Shortfall at the end of the year............c.ccccoeviiiicnns - - - - -
Total of previous years shortfall ............ccccoveniiiienens - - - - - -
Reason for shortfall...........c.cccovviiiiiiiiiiiiie, N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
Details of related party transactions..............ccccceceeenee N.A. N.A. N.A. 12.81 N.A. N.A.

PrOVISION....cciiiiiiiciic e

Note No. 28.c -Ratios

The following are analytical ratios for the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021

Particulars Numerator

Denominator 31st March 2022 31st March 2021 Variance (%)

Current Assets
Debt
EBITDA!

CUITENt RALIO......c.eieiiiiiiiciicicri e

Debt Equity Ratio...........cccccoviiiiiiiicccc

Debt Service Coverage Ratio (DSCR)

Return of Equity Profit after tax

Inventory TUrNOVEr ratio..........ccoccoiiriiiiicice e Cost of Sales®

Trade Receivables turnover ratio Turnover

Trade Payable turnover ratio

Cost of Sales®
Net capital turnover ratio Average Net worth

PAT

Net profit ratio

Return on Capital employed

PAT

Current Liabilities 7.45 5.84 27%
Equity 0.36 0.64 -43%
Debt Service? 1.18 0.29 312%
Net worth 31.95% 9.62% 232%
Average Inventory 0.16 0.07 143%
Average Trade
Receivables 33.11 6.46 413%
Average Trade
Payable 6.51 2.54 156%
Turnover 1.32 2.89 -41%
Revenue 47.08% 29.27% 61%
Capital
employed* 25.46% 6.06% 261%

Notes:

1. Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation.

2. Debt service= Current Borrowings + Non- Current borrowings + Interest charged to statement of profit and loss.

3. Refer note 24 & 25.
4. Capital employed= Net Worth + Current Borrowings + Non- Current Borrowings.

Note No. 29 - Current Tax and Deferred Tax
Income Tax recognised in profit or loss
For the

year ended
31 March, 2021

For the
year ended
31t March, 2022

Particulars

Current Tax:

In respect of current year................. 4,265.90 766.76

Deferred Tax:

In respect of current year
origination and reversal of
temporary differences

89.62 11.23

Total income tax expense on

continuing operations 4,355.52 777.99

30

The total Income tax computation to be reconciled with your book profit.

Particulars For the For the
year ended year ended

31t March, 2022  31% March, 2021

Profit before Tax.......ccccevviveviieienenne. 18,058.43 4,018.90

Income Tax @ 29.12% for the year... 5,258.61 1,170.30

Effect of expenses that is non-

deductible in determining taxable

profit:

CSR Expense (net of deduction u/s

80G allowed) .......ccceuveereerieirieirieias 19.28 21.26

Deduction u/s 80IAB...........ccccccuvuueunae (978.71) (404.30)

Provision for doubtful debts............... 15.99 -
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Note

Note

Note

Particulars For the For the
year ended year ended
31t March, 2022  31¢t March, 2021

Interest on Advance Tax..........c.......... 11.50 .
Others ..o 28.85 (9.27)
Total ... 4,355.52 777.99
Income tax expense recognised in

statement of profit and loss............ 4,355.52 777.99

No. 30 - Earnings per Share
Basic earnings per share

The earnings and weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation of basic earnings per share are as follows:

For the
year ended
31t March, 2022

For the
year ended
318t March, 2021

Particulars

Profit for the year attributable to

owners of the Company................. 13,702.91 3,240.91
Weighted average number of equity

shares (NO.S) .....coooevieiiiciieiie, 150,000,000 150,000,000
Basic and diluted earnings per

share (In rupees per share) of Face

Value- Rs. 10 Per Share..... 9.14 2.16

No. 31 - Segment information

The Company operates in only one business segment, i.e. ‘lease of land
and properties constructed thereon’ based on the nature of the services and
products, the risks and returns etc. This has been determined in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company who are regarded as Chief Operating Decision Maker
(“CODM?”). The Company operates only in India and considering that the
conditions prevailing in India being uniform, no separate geographical
disclosure within India is considered necessary.

No. 32 - Contingent liabilities and commitments

As at As at
31t March, 2022 31t March, 2021

Particulars

(i) Contingent liabilities (to the extent
not provided for)

(a) Other Matters disputed:

Shahri Jamabandi (Urban
Assessment/Ground rent
demanded by Jaipur
Development Authority,
Government of Rajasthan)......

32,179.39 32,179.39

Note: The above amount is based
on demand raised, which the
Company is contesting with the
concerned authorities. Outflows,
if any, arising out of this claim
would depend on the outcome

of the decision of the appellate
authorities and Company’s

rights for future appeals. No
reimbursements are expected.

(b) Other money for which the
Company is contingently
liable (Income Tax Matter
under appeal) .......ccccveiiinennnn,

32.16 32.16

Note

No. 33 - Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro Small and

Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006

Note

Note

As at As at
31t March, 2022 31 March, 2021

Particulars

(a) Dues remaining unpaid................ 28.67 3.09
- Principal.....cccoooiiiie 28.67 3.09
- nterest.... - -

(i) Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the
extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information
available with the Company.

(ii) There are no overdue amounts any time during the year and hence no
interest amount is due or paid during the year.

No. 34 - Leases

The Company has not applied the requirement of IND AS 116 to short-term
leases of all assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases for
which the underlying asset is of low value. Amount recognised in statement
of Profit and Loss Account is Rs. 10.72 Lakhs (PY - Rs. 11.55 Lakhs).

No. 35 - Employee benefits

(a) Defined Contribution Plan

The Company’s contribution to Provident Fund aggregating Rs. 23.39 lakhs
(31st March, 2021 : Rs. 21.04 lakhs) has been recognised in the Statement
of Profit or Loss under the head Employee Benefits Expense.

(b) Defined Benefit Plans:

Gratuity

The Company operates a gratuity plan covering qualifying employees. The
benefit payable is the greater of the amount calculated as per the Payment
of Gratuity Act, 1972 or the Company scheme applicable to the employee.
The benefit vests upon completion of five years of continuous service and
once vested it is payable to employees on retirement or on termination
of employment. In case of death while in service, the gratuity is payable
irrespective of vesting.

Through its defined benefit plans the Company is exposed to a number of
risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:

Investment risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability (denominated in Indian
Rupee) is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference
to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds.

Interest risk
A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability
Longevity risk

The present value of defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference
to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during and
after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan
participants will increase the plan’s liability.

Salary risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by
reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase
in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.
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The significant actuarial assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial
valuations were as follows:

Valuation as at

Particulars 31st March, 31 March,
2022 2021

Discount rate(s) ......c.ccoovevrererenenerenn 7.35% 6.70%
Expected rate(s) of salary increase...... 9.00% 9.00%
Attrition Rate ..........cccoveiiiiiiciiiie, 5.00% 5.00%
Average Longevity ...........cccoeviiiiinne, IALM IALM
(2012-14) (2012-14)

Ultimate Ultimate

Retirement age is considered to be 60 years.

Defined benefit plans (unfunded) - As per Actuarial Valuation

32

Defined Benefit Plan

(Unfunded)
Gratuity
Particulars 31st March, 31 March,
2022 2021
Amounts recognised in comprehensive
income in respect of these defined
benefit plans are as follows:
Current Service COSt.......c.ccoevviciiicnns 11.47 15.08
Net interest expense ...........ccccoveviininns 4.50 5.30
Components of defined benefit costs
recognised in profit or loss..................... 15.97 20.38
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on obligation........ (12.44) (16.90)
Components of defined benefit costs
recognised in other comprehensive
INCOME...c.iiiiiicecee e (12.44) (16.90)
3.53 3.48
I. Net Asset/(Liability) recognised
in the Balance Sheet as at
March 31
1. Present value of defined benefit
obligation as at 31 March ......... 61.10 67.76
2. Surplus/(DefiCit) ......c.cuvvrivrirnens (61.10) (67.76)
3. Current portion of the above.... 1.10 1.22
4. Non current portion of the
AbOVE ..o, 60.00 66.54
1. Change in the obligation during
the year ended March 31
1. Present value of defined benefit
obligation at the beginning of
the year......cocoiiiiiis 67.76 79.18
2. Expenses Recognised in Profit
and Loss Account
- Current Service Cost .......... 11.47 15.08
- Interest Expense (Income)... 4.50 5.30

Defined Benefit Plan

(Unfunded)
Gratuity
Particulars 31st March, 31t March,
2022 2021
3. Recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income
Remeasurement gains/(losses):
- Actuarial Gain (Loss) arising
from:
i. Demographic
Assumptions ...........cc.... - -
ii. Financial Assumptions... (5.07) 0.60
ii. Experience Adjustments... (7.37) (17.50)
4. Benefit payments ..........cccoceeee. (10.19) (14.90)
5. Present value of defined
benefit obligation at the end
of theyear............c..coeeein. 61.10 67.76

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes by in the
weighted principal assumptions is:

Impact on defined benefit

obligation
Principal assumptions Year Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption
by 1% by 1%
Discount rate 2022 54.27 69.14
2021 59.82 7713
Salary growth rate 2022 68.90 54.34
2021 76.49 59.94

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption
while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice this is unlikely to
occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When
calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant
actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defined
benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the
end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the
defined benefit liability recognised in the Balance sheet.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity
analysis did not change compared to previous period.

Maturity profile of defined benefit March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

obligation:

Within 1 year ..o 0.94 1.22
1-2year..iiiiic 1.13 0.99
2 -3 YAl .o 1.20 1.03
3 - 4 year 0.83 1.00
4 -5 Yeam ..ot 0.91 0.73
5-10 years.....ccoovviiiiiniiniiccs 27.21 26.65
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Note No. 36 - Related Party Transactions

Description of relationship

Names of related parties

Description of
relationship

Names of related parties

over Company

Entities having joint control/ significant influence

Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Mahindra & Mahindra Limited
Mahindra Lifespace Developers Limited

Rajasthan State Industrial Development and
Investment Corporation Limited

Mr. Sanjay Srivastava - Chief Executive Officer -
Till 14-08-2020

Mr. Suhas Kulkarni - Chief Executive Officer - From
18-01-2021 To 31-12-2021

Mr. Asfar Khan - Chief Financial Officer

Ms. Bijal Parmar - Company Secretary

Fellow Subsidiaries

(Note 1)

Associate of Ultimate
Holding Company

Mahindra World City Developers Limited

Mahindra Integrated Business Solutions Private Limited
Mahindra Susten Private Limited

Mahindra EPC Irrigation Industries Ltd

Mahindra Defence Systems Limited

Mahindra Industrial Park Private Limited

Mahindra Logistics Limited

Meru Mobility tech Pvt. Ltd.

Tech Mahindra Limited

Details of transaction between the Company and its related parties are disclosed below:

Rajasthan
State
Industrial | Mahindra
Develop- | Integrated Mahindra
Mahindra| ment and| Business | Mahindra Mahindra| Mahindra Meru EPC
Mahindra & Lifespace | Investment| Solutions| Susten | Mahindra Tech| Defence | World City| Mobility| Irrigation
Nature of transactions For the year| Mahindra| Developers |Corporation Private| Private | Logistics | Mahindra| Systems Developers| Tech Pvt.| Industries| Mr. Sanjay
with Related Parties ended Limited Limited Limited Limited| Limited| Limited| Limited Limited Limited Ltd. Ltd| Srivastava
Rendering of services 31-Mar-22 46.52 - - - - 22.84 - - - - - -
31-Mar-21 37.10 - - - - 18.35 0.06 0.06 - - - -
Receiving of services 31-Mar-22 23.79 166.42 - 1.30 - - - - 0.18 6.73 1.23 -
31-Mar-21 21.90 91.53 - 2.88 - - - - - - 1.60 -
Finance arrangements:
Interest on Inter Corporate
Deposits 31-Mar-22 - - - - - - - - - - - -
31-Mar-21 0.10 38.80 - - - - - - - - - -
31-Mar-22 0.10 - - - - - - - - - - -
Reimbursement made to
parties 31-Mar-21 1.14 - - - - - - - - - - -
Remuneration 31-Mar-22 - - - - - - - - - - -
31-Mar-21 - - - - - - - - - - - 103.78
Equity Shares Dividend
Paid 31-Mar-22 - 3,330.00| 1,170.00 - - - - - - - - -
31-Mar-21 - - - - - - - - - - - -
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Rajasthan
State
Industrial | Mahindra
Develop- | Integrated
Mahindra| ment and| Business| Mahindra Mahindra| Mahindra Meru
Mahindra & Lifespace | Investment | Solutions| Susten | Mahindra Tech| Defence | World City| Mobility EPC
Balance| Mahindra| Developers |Corporation Private| Private | Logistics | Mahindra| Systems Developers| Tech Pvt.| Industries| Mr. Sanjay
Particulars as on Limited Limited Limited Limited| Limited| Limited| Limited| Limited L